
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

Greenview, Alberta     1 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, June 20, 2023 9:00 a.m.  Grovedale Public Service Building 
         Grovedale Alberta 

#1 CALL TO ORDER 

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

#3 MINUTES 3.1 Committee of the Whole Meeting minutes held April 18, 
2023 

3 

3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 

#4 DELEGATION 
   9:05 a.m. 4.1 Valleyview Ag. Society Delegation 9 

   9:20 a.m. 4.2 Stolen Harvest Meadery Delegation 59 

 9:35 a.m. 4.3 Sandy Bay Owners Association Delegation 61 

 10:05 a.m. 4.4 Grande Cache Community Events Foundation – Mid Year 
Report 

63 

 10:20 a.m. 4.5 Grande Cache Community Events Foundation – Death Fest 
Request 

69 

#5 NEW BUSINESS 

5.1 Fireman’s Pit 81 

5.2 Ridgevalley Street Lights 104 

5.3 Weed Inspection Process 115 

5.4 Expression of Interest Discussion 135 

5.5 2023 Spring Grant Requests 210 



 

5.6 Wildfire Recovery Discussion 
 

216 

  5.7 Action List 
 

220 

#6 CLOSED SESSION 
 

  
 

#7 ADJOURNMENT 
 

  

 



Minutes of a 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
Grovedale Public Service Building 

Grande Cache, AB on Tuesday, April 18, 2023 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 

Deputy Reeve Bill Smith called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

PRESENT Ward 9 
Ward 8 
Ward 1 
Ward 2 
Ward 3 
Ward 4 
Ward 5 
Ward 6 
Ward 7 
Ward 8 
Ward 9 

Reeve Tyler Olsen 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith 

Councillor Winston Delorme 
Councillor Ryan Ratzlaff 
Councillor Sally Rosson 

Councillor Dave Berry 
Councillor Dale Smith 

         Councillor Tom Burton 
         Councillor Jennifer Scott 

Councillor Christine Schlief 
Councillor Duane Didow 

ATTENDING Chief Administrative Officer 
Director Community Services 
Director Infrastructure & Engineering 
Director Planning & Economic Development 
Director, Corporate Services 
Recording Secretary 
Manager, Communications & Marketing 
Legislative Services Officer 

        Stacey Wabick 
Michelle Honeyman 

Roger Autio 
Martino Verhaeghe 

Ed Kaemingh 
Wendy Holscher 

Stacey Sevilla 
Sarah Sebo 

ABSENT  

#2:  
AGENDA 

MOTION: 23.04.24 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN 
That the Tuesday, April 18, 2023, Committee of the Whole Agenda be 
adopted as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 

  CARRIED 

3



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         April 18, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
#3.1 
COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE MINUTES 
 

MOTION: 23.04.25 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting held on Tuesday, 
February 21, 2023, be adopted as presented.  
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 
#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING  

 

#4 
DELEGATIONS 

4.0 DELEGATIONS 
 

 4.1 HAMLET OF GRANDE CACHE TOURISM INITIATIVES 
 

GC TOURISM MOTION: 23.04.26 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation of Hamlet of Grande 
Cache tourism initiatives, for information as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 4.2 GRANDE CACHE HOTEL TOURISM PRESENTATION 
GC HOTEL  MOTION: 23.04.27 Moved by: COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE SCHLIEF 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Grande Cache 
Hotel, for information as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 4.3 MENTAL WELLNESS MATTERS SOCIETY 
MENTAL WELLNESS 
MATTERS 

MOTION: 23.04.28 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW 
That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from Mental 
Wellness Matters Society, for information as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
 
 

4



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         April 18, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
 Deputy Reeve Bill Smith recessed the meeting at 10:35 a.m. 

Deputy Reeve Bill Smith reconvened the meeting at 10:41 a.m. 
 
Councillor Scott exit the meeting at 10:36 a.m. 
 

 4.4 GRANDE SPIRIT FOUNDATION PRESENTATION 
GRANDE SPIRIT 
FOUNDATION  

MOTION: 23.04.29 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Grande 
Spirit Foundation for information, as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

#5 NEW BUSINESS 5.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 5.1 2022 SAFETY MAINTENANCE AUDIT PRESENTATION 
SAFETY AUDIT MOTION: 23.04.30 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 

That Committee of the Whole accepts the 2022 Safety Maintenance Audit 
presentation for information as presented.   
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith recessed the meeting at 11:58 a.m. 
Deputy Reeve Bill Smith reconvened the meeting at 12:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

 5.2 BUSINESS LICENSING BYLAW OPTIONS 
BUSINESS LICENCE MOTION: 23.04.31 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Committee of the Whole accepts the Business Licence options as 
information, as presented.                                                                                                                    
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

5



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         April 18, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 
 5.3 BYLAW 23-939 TAX BYLAW 2023 
TAX BYLAW 2023 MOTION: 23.04.32 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY 

That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on non-residential 
tax rates for information, as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 5.4 ALBERTA ADVANTAGE IMMIGRATION RURAL RENEWAL STREAM 
PROGRAM 

RURAL RENEWAL 
STREAM 

MOTION: 23.04.33 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation on the next steps of 
the Rural Renewal Stream Designation within Greenview for information, as 
presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
 

 5.5 JOINT USE AND PLANNING AGREEMENTS (JUPA) GRANDE 
YELLOWHEAD SCHOOL DIVISION 

JUPA MOTION: 23.04.34 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the attached draft Joint Use and 
Planning Agreement with Grande Yellowhead Public School Division for 
information, as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         April 18, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 
 5.6 MECHANICAL SERVICES CONTRACT REVIEW 
MECHANICAL SERVICES 
CONTRACT 

MOTION: 23.04.35 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME 
That Committee of the Whole accepts the review of Nordic Mechanical 
Services Ltd. Contracted services for the Grande Cache Recreation Centre 
and the Greenview Regional Multiplex for information as presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 5.7 ACTION LIST 
 ACTION LIST MOTION: 23.04.36 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 

That Committee of the Whole accept the Action List, for information, as 
presented. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 6.0 CLOSED SESSION 
 7.0 ADJOURNMENT 
ADJOURNMENT  MOTION: 23.04.37 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF 

That this Committee of the Whole meeting adjourn at 3:10 p.m. 
FOR: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, 
Councillor Burton, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow 
ABSENT: Councillor Scott 
                                                                                                                 CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
 
 
    Recording Secretary                                                                                                            Chair 
 
_______________________                                                                               ______________________ 
 

7



 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes                         April 18, 2023 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 

8



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Valleyview Ag. Society Delegation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Valleyview Ag. Society for 
information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Valleyview & Districts Agricultural Society was incorporated December 11, 1967, and has been active in 
the community for 55 years as a non-profit organization. The facilities are situated within town limits on over 
30 acres of land on top of Crocus Hill in Valleyview. The Board of Directors are volunteers from the community 
and oversee the operation of the Agricultural Society. The Ag Society has been an integral part of the 
community by providing a facility for recreational, and educational events for many locals and nonlocals, 
helping aid in the local economy. 

One of the facilities is an indoor riding arena and hall, which is used by many Valleyview and area residents 
as well as nonlocals. The Jack Williamson Ag Plex was constructed by local volunteers of the Ag Society and 
Red Willow Roping Club in 1983. 

The Valleyview Ag Society envisions a brand new indoor facility for the diverse agricultural community. A 
new Ag Events Centre will offer the Municipal District of Greenview #16 residents and surrounding area a 
venue to host bigger ag events. In turn it will bolster the local economy by drawing in participants/spectators 
from around Alberta, British Columbia, and Saskatchewan. The new Ag Events Centre will continue to provide 
a home for local clubs such as 4-H, beef, horse, canine, and Red Willow Roping Club. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Committee of the Whole will have information before the grant intake on the Valleyview Ag. Society

and the project they are submitting a grant request for.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no disadvantages to accepting the recommended motion.

9



 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole may choose to not accept the presentation, however this is not 
recommended as Committee of the Whole is recommended format for non-profit organizations to present 
to Council. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• New Build Slide Deck 
 

10



Valleyview & District 
Agricultural Society

NEW AGRICULTURAL EVENTS CENTRE

11



Valleyview Ag Society

The Valleyview & Districts Agricultural Society was incorporated December 11, 1967 and has been 
active in the community for 55 years as a non profit organization.  The facilities are situated within 
town limits on over 30 acres of land on top of Crocus Hill in Valleyview.  The Board Of Directors are 
volunteers from the community and oversee the operation of the Agricultural Society. 

The Ag Society has been an integral part of the community by providing a facility for recreational, 
and educational events for many locals and non locals, helping aid in the local economy.  

One of the facilities is an indoor riding arena and hall, which is used by many Valleyview and area 
residents as well as non locals.  The Jack Williamson Ag Plex was constructed by local volunteers 
of the Ag Society and Red Willow Roping Club in 1983.  

There are currently 66 active Ag Society members as well as numerous non members that use the 
facility.

12



Why do we need a new arena?
The current indoor arena and hall have been well utilized over the past four decades by agriculture 
enthusiasts.  The wood structure has provided multi-disciplinary activities for equine, bovine, canine and 
small animal use, unfortunately it is at the end of its life span.

Members as well as non members have expressed concerns with the poor footing, flooding of the arena, air 
quality (mold), and limited spectator seating.  Our major concern is the structural integrity of the building 
due to ongoing water damage, as the building is supported by untreated wood posts, and the ceiling leaks 
due to poor vapor barrier/roof.  Furthermore, the size of the arena prevents certain events from taking place, 
such as barrel racing, gymkhana, dressage, cattle penning, and will restrict the amount of youth participants 
in the ever growing Peace Prospect Show (especially if the arena floods in the spring).  As a result of these 
issues, we have seen a decrease in members over the years.

The Valleyview Ag Society envisions a brand new indoor facility for the diverse agricultural community.  A 
new Ag Events Centre will offer the Municipal District of Greenview #16 residents and surrounding area a 
venue to host bigger ag events.  In turn it will bolster the local economy by drawing in 
participants/spectators from around Alberta, British Columbia, and Saskatchewan.

The new Ag Events Centre will continue to provide a home for local clubs such as 4-H, beef, horse, canine, 
and Red Willow Roping Club.

13



Current building

14



Current building dimensions

15



16



17



18



19



20



Valleyview Ag Society Building Committee Objective

Bring a modern, fully functional Ag Events Center to the Town of 
Valleyview and the Municipal District of Greenview #16 
residents.  The Ag Events Centre will provide more opportunities 
to engage the agriculture community, and meet the needs of a 
diverse membership group.

21



Proposed Ag Events Centre

140’ x 260’

100’ x 220’ arena floor

Concession area Bathrooms

Seating for 350+ Bucking chutes

Meeting room Roping chutes

Livestock weigh scale Wash rack
22



Ag Events Centre requirements

❏ Larger arena floor size
❏ Grandstand seating for 350+ spectators
❏ Lobby and concession space
❏ Office/administration space
❏ Livestock chutes (roping & rough stock)
❏ Washrooms
❏ Announcers booth
❏ Panels

❏ Water taps inside and outside
❏ Return alley for roping cattle
❏ Meeting room
❏ Safe tie area for livestock
❏ Storage area for equipment and 

supplies
❏ Lasers for barrel racing, pole bending
❏ Ticket booth

23



What will the Ag Events Centre be used for?

❏ 4-H beef, horse and canine
❏ High School rodeo
❏ Therapeutic riding club
❏ Peace Country Prospect Show
❏ Clinics
❏ Lessons
❏ Equine first aid courses
❏ Safety courses
❏ Equine and Ag Fairs
❏ Farmers markets
❏ Vendor markets
❏ Annual fair and rodeo 
❏ Annual horse show
❏ Concerts
❏ Auction sales
❏ Christmas and Halloween photos

❏ RCMP musical ride
❏ Meetings
❏ Rental services-farrier, massage, chiropractor, 

veterinarian, equine dentist, cattle trimming 
❏ Bull riding events
❏ Team roping
❏ Ranch roping
❏ Breakaway roping
❏ Barrel racing
❏ Cattle penning, sorting and cutting
❏ Dressage
❏ Horse jumping
❏ Dog agility and sniff club
❏ Stock dog trials
❏ Open riding
❏ Gymkhana

24



Construction Schedule

Completion Spring 2026

39 400 square feet

Estimated Budget $6.5 million

25



The following building designs and quotes in this 
presentation are estimates we have acquired from 
researching an new Ag Events Centre.  These are not 
finalized and subject to change.

Builders - Southwest Design & Construction Ltd. and 
Superior Buildings &  Design Ltd.

26



Superior Buildings & Design Ltd.

27



28



Building

29



Building corner

30



Roof

31



Inside

32



Second floor

33



Truss

34



Bleachers & Kitchen area

35



Bleachers & Kitchen area

36



Southwest Design & Construction Ltd.

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



Groundwork quote

45



Arena panels quote

46



How does this benefit Valleyview & 
MD of Greenview community

❏ Local advantage in the form of recreation, 
entertainment and educational activities 
for the community, region and province

❏ Events held at the Ag Event Centre will 
bring people to our community generating 
income for our local businesses 
(restaurants and hotels)

❏ Promotes agriculture within our 
community

❏ Adds a meeting space for the community 
and surrounding area

❏ Year round usage 47



Funding opportunities

❏ Municipal District of Greenview 
Community Grant

❏ Community Facility Enhancement 
Program

❏ RME Right By You Ag Society Grant
❏ FCC Agrispirit Fund Grant
❏ Co-op Community Spaces Funding
❏ Peavey Mart Community Agri Grant

❏ Naming rights and sponsorship (ie. 
building announcer booth, concession, 
panels, sound system, chutes, etc.)

❏ Donations tiered
❏ Diamond
❏ Platinum
❏ Gold
❏ Silver
❏ Bronze

❏ Donations in kind
❏ Raffles (beef, quad, side by side, cash)
❏ Poker rallies
❏ Dinner and dances
❏ Concerts
❏ Silent auctions

48



49



Next steps

❏ Request for the Municipal District of Greenview to partner and/or collaborate with 
the Valleyview Ag Society on the building of the new Ag events centre

❏ Apply for the Municipal District of Greenview Community grant as well as other 
grants that are available for this project

❏ Develop and put into practice a funding strategy to secure capital required to plan, 
design, and operate a new Ag events centre.

❏ Develop a sponsorship and advertising package for businesses and organizations
❏ Develop strategies for ongoing engagement with the members, non members and 

local businesses and organizations to construct and operate a new Ag events centre 
❏ Construct facility

50



Ag Society events

51



4-H Horse

52



4-H Beef

53



Red Willow Roping Club

All Girl Roping School 2023

54



Leaping Leprechaun Jump Show 2023

55



Peace Prospect Show 2023

56



Miscellaneous activities-Horse show, Dog class, rodeo dance, Christmas photos

57



Attachments to the presentation 

Last audited financial report

Feasibility Study

Crocus Hill Stampede Rodeo Report

Support letters from the community

58



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Stolen Harvest Meadery 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation from the Stolen Harvest Meadery for 
information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Stolen Harvest Meadery, located in the Grovedale area, is a unique micro-batch artisan meadery. They 
specialize in producing small batches of high-quality mead, a honey-based alcoholic beverage. As a small 
business operating within Greenview, they are seeking changes to the existing tax bylaw to allow tax 
exemptions to small businesses within Greenview. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of the recommended action is Committee of the Whole will have an update from the

Stolen Harvest Meadery.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no disadvantages to accepting the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole may choose to not accept the presentation; however, this is not 
recommended as Committee of the Whole is the recommended format for organizations to present. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

59



 
 

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow-up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
N/A 

60



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Sandy Bay Owners Association 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: CAO SERVICES DIR: PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation from the Sandy Bay Owners Association 
for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Sandy Bay Community has suffered a significant loss due to the wildfires that swept through the area in 
May. These wildfires have caused extensive damage to homes, infrastructure, and natural resources, leaving 
the community in a state of distress, and requiring immediate attention. 

The Sandy Bay Owners Association, represented by Mr. Joe Johnson, Vice President, seeks to present the 
challenges faced by the community, provide an overview of the immediate requirements, and discuss 
potential avenues for support from Committee of the Whole. 

The Sandy Bay Owners Association's delegation hopes to engage in open dialogue with Council members, 
presenting their case, sharing community perspectives, and highlighting the pressing need for assistance. 
While no formal decisions can be made during the meeting, it is an essential step towards fostering 
collaboration and finding viable solutions to support the recovery of the Sandy Bay Community.  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. By accepting the delegation, Committee members will have the opportunity to engage in direct

communication with representatives from the Sandy Bay community. This direct interaction allows
for a firsthand understanding of the challenges, concerns, and needs faced by the community
following the devastating wildfires. It provides a platform for open dialogue and empathy, fostering a
stronger connection between the Committee and the affected residents.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

61



 
 

 

1. If Committee of the Whole decides to recommend that Council provide assistance to the Sandy Bay 
community, it may require diverting funds, personnel, or other resources from other projects or 
initiatives. As a result it is crucial for Administration to carefully assess the available resources and 
ensure that the proposed assistance aligns with the Council's priorities and obligations to other areas 
of responsibility. 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole can choose to make a 2nd motion with a recommendation to Council 
to explore options for assisting the Sandy Bay Owners Association with the cleanup and recovery of Sandy 
Bay. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion, but future costs could be incurred 
depending on the actions taken by Committee of the Whole following the presentation. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

 

62



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Community Events Foundation Mid-Year Report Presentation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation of the mid-year report and financials 
from the Grande Cache Community Events Foundation for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Grande Cache Community Events Foundation is a non-profit organization that focuses on 
providing community events to enhance the quality of life for Greenview residents in the Grande Cache area. 

The Grande Cache Community Events Foundation will be presenting their mid-year report and financials to 
Committee of the Whole as requested by Administration.   

Council approved a $40,000.00 grant to the Grande Cache Community Events Foundation in 2023.  The first 
payment of $20,000.00 was provided with the condition that reports and financials be submitted to 
Administration by June 15, 2023, prior to receiving the second and final payment.  Administration has 
attached the mid-year report and financials for review.  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is that there is an

opportunity to ask questions relating to the mid-year report and financials.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to request additional information from the 
Grande Cache Community Events Foundation. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 

63



 
 

 

There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow up actions to the recommended motion. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Mid-Year Report & Financials 

 

64



1

Lisa Lenentine

From: Jake O'Reilly <jake@gccef.ca>
Sent: Saturday, May 27, 2023 2:36 PM
To: Lisa Lenentine
Subject: Mid-term Grant Check in letter
Attachments: StatementfromFiscalstarttoPresentdate.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Hello Lisa,  
 
Please find attached our current fiscal statement.  
 
So far we have assisted with five events this year. The Akasaka figure skating club's carnival, The Ice Breaker Memorial 
Hockey tournament, the sod turning ceremony for the Kikinow Elders Lodge, the AWN Round Dance and the Grande 
Theater Players production of Red Riding Hood.  
 
Our staff came in to take action photos for the Carnival. We then took action photos and assisted with security and 
provided additional resources for the Ice Breaker. Our staff assisted with Audio for the sod turning. We assisted with 
planning, operation and concession for the AWN Round Dance. Then finally we assisted with the set‐up, tear down, front 
of house sales and local guiding for Red Riding Hood. 
Total attendance for these would be Carnival 150‐200, Ice Breaker 1500 ‐ 2000 (with over 250 attending the dinner and 
band), 125‐150 for the sod turning, 325‐400 for the round dance and finally 300‐350 (not including over seventy children 
who auditioned for the play.)  
 
For our own events and programs our open house saw limited interest as did our light up labyrinth event. Baby Think it 
over at Susa Creek was well received. Our planning and grant process for Canada Day is now finished and the Three 
Peaks challenge will start in a few days. Death Fest planning is well under way and assistance for two events has been 
requested over the summer so far. 
 
So far this fiscal year I have put in three hundred and twelve hours including one twenty two hour shift. My volunteers 
(including some of our paid staff who volunteered time) have put in around one hundred hours and our paid staff has 
put in around thirty hours.  
 
For our summer programming we have to get our orders in as soon as possible. We finally are set up to accept direct 
deposits, if it is quicker to get our funding that way could you please forward me the form? 
 
If not I believe the previous issue has been resolved but please ensure the cheque is sent to  
 
Grande Cache Community Events Foundation 
Box 1582, Grande Cache, Alberta 
T0E 0Y0 
 
We had an odd issue with our cheques (and a few bills) going to another place for a while. 
 
Kind Regards, 
Jake O'Reilly 
 

65



Grande Cache Community Events Foundation
Profit and Loss

April 2022 - March 2023

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, March 15, 2023 03:57 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

INCOME

Donation 32,000.00

Grant Funding 45,000.00

Income from all other sources 2,144.64

Sales 24,518.55

Total Income $103,663.19

GROSS PROFIT $103,663.19

EXPENSES

AGLC Fees 100.00

Asset Acquisition 2,500.00

Bank charges - Float 1,000.00

Canada Day Expenses 3,820.00

Catering 1,761.75

Concession Expenses 6,799.24

Contractor Fee 1,233.00

Contractor Fee - FunnyFest 2,320.00

Contractor Fee - J. O'Reilly 18,961.17

Contractor Fee - Joe Drover 8,297.10

Contractor Fee - Magnum Fireworks 10,500.00

Contractor Fee Court Jesters 5,775.00

Death Race Expenses 8,500.00

Equipment Purchase 199.99

Frostlight Festival Expense 4,800.00

Halloween Expenses 3,800.00

Hotels for Performers 657.30

Moneris related fees 2,436.43

Partnership Payout 1,350.00

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 318.41

Wages 6,345.18

Total Payroll Expenses 6,663.59

Signs and Printing 868.32

Supplies 320.00

Three peaks Related Expenses 742.48

Total Expenses $93,405.37

OTHER EXPENSES

Cheque Sent to wrong Org 5,000.00

Credit card payments 5,829.01

Other Miscellaneous Expense 897.97

Total Other Expenses $11,726.98

PROFIT $ -1,469.16

66



Grande Cache Community Events Foundation
Statement from Fiscal start to Present date

April 1 - May 27, 2023

Accrual Basis  Saturday, May 27, 2023 12:49 PM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

INCOME

Donation 5,000.00

Grant Funding 8,000.00

Sales 1,345.00

Total Income $14,345.00

GROSS PROFIT $14,345.00

EXPENSES

Bank charges - Float 600.00

Catering 0.00

Contractor Fee 600.00

Contractor Fee - J. O'Reilly 4,416.00

Contractor Fee - Wellness related 600.00

Government Payments 25.00

Moneris related fees 382.36

Office/General Administrative Expenses 1,589.75

Payroll Expenses

Taxes 24.76

Wages 1,765.60

Total Payroll Expenses 1,790.36

Rental of Halls or Spaces 100.00

Supplies 1,500.00

Total Expenses $11,603.47

OTHER EXPENSES

Credit card payments 600.00

Other Miscellaneous Expense 0.00

Total Other Expenses $600.00

PROFIT $2,141.53

67



Grande Cache Community Events Foundation
Balance Sheet April 2022 to March 2023

As of March 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Thursday, June 1, 2023 10:33 AM GMT-06:00   1/1

TOTAL

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Chequing 6,508.11

main account 0.00

Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $6,508.11

Accounts Receivable (A/R)

Accounts Receivable (A/R) 0.00

Total Accounts Receivable (A/R) $0.00

Total Current Assets $6,508.11

Total Assets $6,508.11

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (A/P)

Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00

Total Accounts Payable (A/P) $0.00

Payroll Liabilities

Federal Taxes 113.68

Total Payroll Liabilities 113.68

Total Current Liabilities $113.68

Total Liabilities $113.68

Equity

Retained Earnings 16,002.18

Profit for the year -9,607.75

Total Equity $6,394.43

Total Liabilities and Equity $6,508.11

68



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Community Events Foundation Presentation 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO: MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the presentation from the Grande Cache Community 
Events Foundation for information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The Grande Cache Community Events Foundation is a non-profit organization that focuses on 
providing community events to enhance the quality of life for Greenview residents in the Grande Cache area. 

The Grande Cache Community Events Foundation will be presenting a request for the Death Fest Event.  

The Grande Cache Community Events Foundation submitted a letter to Greenview on May 27, 2023 (see 
attached) requesting Council’s permission to rent Central Park in Grande Cache for Death Fest and set up a 
temporarily fenced, licensed area.  Previous in-person conversations have been had with the Grande Cache 
Community Events Foundation and Administration regarding the same request in which Administration has 
declined the request for a licensed area in Central Park.  Upon receiving the request letter on May 27, 2023, 
Administration requested the Grande Cache Community Events Foundation present the request to 
Committee of the Whole. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is that there is an

opportunity to ask questions prior to making a decision at a future Council meeting.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to request additional information from the 
Grande Cache Community Events Foundation. 

69



 
 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will present the request for decision at a future Council meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Request Letters (2) 
• Death Fest Schedule & Details 

 

70



Grande Cache Community Events
Foundation
Box 1582
Grande Cache, Alberta
T0E 0Y0
(780) 783-0311
Jake@gccef.ca

May 27th, 2023

Hello Councillors,

My name is Jake O’Reilly and I am the Events Director for the Grande Cache Community Events

Foundation. Today I am writing to you to request that we be allowed to return one of the most beloved

events in Grande Cache’s History to our little mountain community.

Death Fest is the festival that surrounds the Death Race. While the Death Race needs no introduction I

would like to go into some history. The race started in August of 2000 and over the years the former town

started to put together a mini-festival around the race. This festival grew significantly over the years to

have Musical acts like Great Big Sea, The Road Hammers and Corb Lund all perform at the race. While we

will never return to this scale, I would like to return the core component of the festival to central park on

August long weekend, this year that would be August 4th to August 7th.

Live Music, Family Activities, Food, Games and Children’s Performances are all in the plans for this year

with the intention to grow the festival back to what it was previously. This year we have Inflatable rides, A

Magic show, Face Painting, A Foam Pit, Demonstrations and performances by local groups, Costumed

entertainers, Assorted Games, Live music and more is still on the way.

To pay for this is not cheap. The stage and tents cost over eight thousand dollars to be delivered, Fencing

will be expensive, The entertainment is going to be almost five thousand dollars and the inflatables and

foam pit nearly another five thousand. This is a stretch for a non-profit organization at the best of times.

The cost of this event was heavy on even the former town.

71



To help pay for this, they used alcohol sales, ticket prices and food sales. We would like to request

permission to do the same.

Central Park has been the home for Death Fest in years prior. Before that it was The High School field. In

order to use this space we would need the permission of council to rent the park and set up a temporarily

fenced, Licensed area. This area would run from 12pm until 10pm on Saturday night and 12PM until 5PM

Sunday Night.

Additional measures are being taken to prevent rowdy behavior. I see this as a family event that is

licensed, not a place to go and get drunk. As a result we have no hard liquor sales at all. To prevent noise

disturbance, We also are staying within the time period allowed by the noise bylaw meaning our live music

will end at 10PM.

It is estimated that the sales from this area would likely cover a significant portion of our costs for the

event. Combined with merchandise, Concession sales, Admission fees and Vendor fees we could

potentially make money to put towards events later in the year. This would significantly help our

organization to create more for the community.

This festival has meant a lot to everyone in this community for a very long time. I will always remember

the concerts I attended as a child, right in the heart of my own little mountain town. The Go Karts,

Paintball, My first job, All the Carnival games, My friends challenging me to the giant boxing glove ring or

the sumo suits and so many other memories. I hope you will let me bring this one back for the next

generation of kids…and for the kids who are now adults, who grew up in this community with me and

would love the chance to give their kids the same opportunities they had.

Sincerely,

Jake O’Reilly - Event Director

72



Hello Duane,

I am writing this letter today to request permission to run a licensed area in central
park during the Death Race weekend. We are not requesting money. We are asking
to have the ability to earn it ourselves by setting up a licensed area for alcohol sales.

Licensed areas in public areas are quite common. Key examples would include Ufest
in Edmonton which is being run in Borden park, Bear Creek Folk Festival being run in
Muskoseepi Park, the Ball/Golf tournaments run here in Grande Cache or even
Death Fest itself in prior years.

Death Fest is part of Grande Cache’s Identity. The Death Race remains the only
event that will book all the hotels in town almost a full year in advance. It will allow us
to showcase local artists in a family friendly environment during one of the busiest
weekends of our year.

The intention is to grow the festival back to what it was previously.
This year we have Inflatable rides, A Magic show, Face Painting, A Foam Pit,
Demonstrations and performances by local groups, Costumed entertainers, Assorted
Games, Live music and more is still on the way.

Additional measures are being taken to prevent rowdy behavior. I see this as a family
event that is licensed, not a place to go and get drunk. As a result we have no hard
liquor sales at all. To prevent significant noise disturbance, We also are staying within
the time period allowed by the noise bylaw meaning our live music will end at 10PM.

It is estimated that the sales from this area would likely cover a significant portion of
our costs for the event. Combined with merchandise, Concession sales, Admission
fees and Vendor fees we could potentially make money to put towards events later in
the year. This would significantly help our organization to create more for the
community.

This festival has meant a lot to everyone in this community for a very long time. I will
always remember the concerts I attended as a child, right in the heart of my own little
mountain town. The Go Karts, Paintball, My first job, All the Carnival games, My
friends challenging me to the giant boxing glove ring or the sumo suits and so many
other memories. I hope you will let me bring this back for the next generation of
kids…and for the kids who are now adults, who grew up in this community with me
and would love the chance to give their kids the same opportunities they had.

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Jake O’Reilly - Event Director
Grande Cache Community Events Foundation

Received May 27/23

73



Friday August 4th

Vendor setup all day
Stage Delivery
Open 12-5pm

Events currently on Friday: Nothing as it is a prep day

Saturday August 5th
Open 11am to 12am next day
Alcohol service if approved will be 12pm until the last call at 10PM with closure at 11PM.

Events Currently on Saturday
Inflatables 12pm - 5PM
Foam Pit from 5PM until 6PM
Music and entertainment from 8PM until 10PM
Vendors
Assorted performers on the stage all day.
Night Market from 8pm until 10pm

Sunday August 6th
Open 12pm to 10pm
Inflatables 12PM until 5PM
Assorted stage performances
Assorted remaining vendors
If Approved Alcohol service 12PM until 5PM or until sales slow.

74



MD of Greenview 

   Please download this form on your computer and save file.     

   Complete form, attach to email and email to wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca. 
 

▪ If you wish to present to Council as a delegate at a Committee of the Whole Meeting, please fill out this form in its entirety. 
All presentations have a 15-minute timeline. 

 
 

 

▪ To present at a Committee of the Whole meeting, this submission form must be filled out and submitted 30 days prior to the 
requested meeting date. 

▪ Any documents (reports, financials, PowerPoints, videos) that you wish to present the day of the meeting must be submitted 
15 days prior to the meeting. 

Note: Indicated deadlines are based on the time required to assemble and disseminate agendas in accordance with the Municipal Government Act. 

▪ Committee of the Whole meetings are held the third Tuesday of every month in various locations within Greenview. 
Please choose the date and location in the Delegation Request Form. 

▪ Completed applications may be submitted to wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca 

▪ If you have any questions, please contact: 
Wendy Holscher, Executive Assistant by phone 780-524-7627 or email wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca 

The personal information collected on this Delegation Request Form is collected in compliance with the Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Privacy (FOIP) Act, RSA 2000 c. F-25 s.33 (c). We collect only what is necessary to respond to your request and to 
share the information with internal departments that relate to your request. Moreover, we do not create individual profiles with 
the information you provide. Further, we keep the information only for the length of time necessary to fulfill the purpose for which 
it was collected. If you have any questions or concerns about the collection of personal information, please contact the MD of 
Greenview FOIP Coordinator at 780-827-7600. 

75

mailto:wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca.
mailto:wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca
mailto:wendy.holscher@mdgreenview.ab.ca


MD of Greenview 

Please read the following specifications carefully and initial/check to acknowledge that you have read and understand 
them. They are instructions regarding Council procedure and expectations that will assist you with your request and 
presentation. 

Requests for delegations to the Committee of the Whole shall be made to the Executive Assistant in writing 
at least 30 days prior to the requested meeting date. Requests received less than 30 days prior may be 
scheduled at the next available Committee date. 

All documentation, PowerPoints, and videos that you wish to present during your time in front of Committee 
of the Whole must be submitted 15 days prior to the meeting date. Please submit your information in a 
timely manner to avoidyour presentation being pushed to the next available Committee date. 

Presentations, including questions and answers shall be limited to 15 minutes in length unless there is 
consent prior to establishment of the Agenda by Council to extend. (Please make sure your 
PowerPoint/presentations reflect this time limit.) 

Committee Meetings are public in nature and it is understood that an individual writing or submitting items 
to a Councillor or to Administration has a reasonable expectation that their correspondence/presentations, 
which may include personal information or business information, could be disclosed at a Committee meeting 
as part of the Agenda, and live streamed on the municipal website. 

76



MD of Greenview 

Non-Profit Organization/Business Name:  

Name:  

Address:  

Email:  

Phone: 
 

Please remember to submit any supporting documents or presentations 15 days prior to your scheduled meeting date 
and review your presentation to ensure it will fit within the 15-minute time frame. 

Administration will be in contact to confirm the time and date of the above request. 

 

 Added to Agenda Referred to:  

Other departments required to be in attendance?  

Notification to Director of service area? Yes 
 

 No In Camera? 
 

 Yes 
 

 No 

 

The chosen date and location below will be accommodated to the best of our ability, however, cannot be guaranteed. 

(Request Form by Dec. 16, 2022, presentation documents by Jan. 2, 2023)

 (Request Form by Jan. 20, 2023, presentation documents by Feb. 6, 2023) 

 (Request Form by March 17, 2023, presentation documents by April 3, 2023) 

 (Request Form by April 14, 2023, presentation documents by May 1, 2023) 

 (Request Form by May 19, 2023, presentation documents by June 5, 2023) 

(Request Form by June 16, 2023, presentation documents by July 3, 2023) 

(Request Form by Aug.18, 2023, presentation documents by Sept. 4, 2023)

(Request Form by Sept.15, 2023, presentation documents by Oct. 2, 2023)

(Request Form by Oct. 20, 2023, presentation documents by Nov. 6, 2023)

(Request Form by Nov.17, 2023, presentation documents by Dec. 4, 2023)

77



1

Lisa Lenentine

From: Jake O'Reilly <jake@gccef.ca>
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 10:55 AM
To: Lisa Lenentine
Subject: Re: Canada Day Event

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

 
Hey Lisa,  
 
My AD reminded me that with our grant I specified rent in the grant meaning I won't be asking for sponsorship for this 
event. 
 
Sorry for the confusion, 
Jake 
 
On Thu, Jun 1, 2023, 8:42 a.m. Lisa Lenentine <Lisa.Lenentine@mdgreenview.ab.ca> wrote: 

Hi Jake, 

  

When will you be applying for a sponsorship for the Canada Day event request?  

  

Kind Regards, 

Lisa 

  

From: Jake O'Reilly <jake@gccef.ca>  
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 1:10 PM 
To: Lisa Lenentine <Lisa.Lenentine@mdgreenview.ab.ca> 
Subject: Re: Mid‐term Grant Check in letter 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

  

Hey Lisa, would a full fiscal statement work as it will show both income and expenses? If so I've attached it below.  

  

78



2

Thanks, 

Jake 

  

On Wed, May 31, 2023, 11:41 a.m. Lisa Lenentine <Lisa.Lenentine@mdgreenview.ab.ca> wrote: 

Hi Jake, 

  

Can you please provide your fiscal year income statement (April 1, 2022‐March 31, 2023) as well as a balance sheet for 
your fiscal year. 

  

Kind Regards, 

Lisa 

  

From: Jake O'Reilly <jake@gccef.ca>  
Sent: Saturday, May 27, 2023 2:36 PM 
To: Lisa Lenentine <Lisa.Lenentine@mdgreenview.ab.ca> 
Subject: Mid‐term Grant Check in letter 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

  

Hello Lisa,  

  

Please find attached our current fiscal statement.  

  

So far we have assisted with five events this year. The Akasaka figure skating club's carnival, The Ice Breaker Memorial 
Hockey tournament, the sod turning ceremony for the Kikinow Elders Lodge, the AWN Round Dance and the Grande 
Theater Players production of Red Riding Hood.  

  

Our staff came in to take action photos for the Carnival. We then took action photos and assisted with security and 
provided additional resources for the Ice Breaker. Our staff assisted with Audio for the sod turning. We assisted with 

79



3

planning, operation and concession for the AWN Round Dance. Then finally we assisted with the set‐up, tear down, 
front of house sales and local guiding for Red Riding Hood. 

Total attendance for these would be Carnival 150‐200, Ice Breaker 1500 ‐ 2000 (with over 250 attending the dinner 
and band), 125‐150 for the sod turning, 325‐400 for the round dance and finally 300‐350 (not including over seventy 
children who auditioned for the play.)  

  

For our own events and programs our open house saw limited interest as did our light up labyrinth event. Baby Think 
it over at Susa Creek was well received. Our planning and grant process for Canada Day is now finished and the Three 
Peaks challenge will start in a few days. Death Fest planning is well under way and assistance for two events has been 
requested over the summer so far. 

  

So far this fiscal year I have put in three hundred and twelve hours including one twenty two hour shift. My volunteers 
(including some of our paid staff who volunteered time) have put in around one hundred hours and our paid staff has 
put in around thirty hours.  

  

For our summer programming we have to get our orders in as soon as possible. We finally are set up to accept direct 
deposits, if it is quicker to get our funding that way could you please forward me the form? 

  

If not I believe the previous issue has been resolved but please ensure the cheque is sent to  

  

Grande Cache Community Events Foundation 

Box 1582, Grande Cache, Alberta 

T0E 0Y0 

  

We had an odd issue with our cheques (and a few bills) going to another place for a while. 

  

Kind Regards, 

Jake O'Reilly 

  

80



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Fireman’s Pit Overview 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: KG 
DEPARTMENT: RECREATION DIR: MH PRESENTER: DW 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the presentation on the current status of Fireman’s Pit, 
located south of Grande Cache at E-28-56-8-W6M, for information, as presented.  

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Greenview inherited the provincial disposition for Fireman’s Pit, located at E-28-56-8-W6M, during the 2019 
dissolution of the former Town of Grande Cache. At that time, the disposition was expired, and 
Administration has been working with the Province of Alberta to obtain a proper lease and ensure the site 
was operating as required. The presentation will provide an overview of the history of the site, the current 
state of the site, including operations and infrastructure, and provide Administration’s recommendations for 
moving forward.    

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of the recommended motion is Committee of the Whole will be informed about the

current status of Fireman’s Pit.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to not accept the presentation for information. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 

81



 
 

 

 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW UP ACTIONS: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Fireman’s Pit PowerPoint Presentation 
• Map – Fireman’s Pit  

 

82



Fireman’s Pit Overview

Presented by: Deborah Wood  
Assistant Manager, Recreation 

83



History
1985 – The former Town of Grande Cache applied for a 
recreation lease for Fireman’s Pit following the fire 
department developing a park at the location, which fell 
within the Town’s existing gravel pit lease. The proposed 
purpose of the park was for private functions upon request 
to the fire department. 
1985 – The Municipal Planning Commission of
Improvement District No. 16 passed a motion having no 
objections to the proposed lease. This approval was then 
provided to Municipal Affairs.
1986 – The disposition (REC 850036) for Fireman’s Park is 
formally approved by the Province of Alberta. 

84



History
1992 – The following statement was made during an 
Informal Council Meeting: 
“Council members advised that there would be some 
firewood needed for Hide-A-Way camp, the Grande 
Cache Lake area for skidoo races this winter and at the 
McDonald Site at Pierre Grey Lakes. In addition, some of 
this firewood could be hauled to the Firemen’s Pit and 
any group that is interested in loading and hauling and 
selling to the public such as the Muttoneers, Seniors, etc. 
are welcomed.”

85



History
2007 – The Province issued a renewal for the disposition 
with a 10 year term. Indicating that Lessee shall use the said 
lands solely for the purpose of a Public Facility (Picnic Area). 
Additionally, the noticed letter indicated that: 

“ As public access is a central feature and is consistent with 
the intent and purpose of this lease the lease holder shall 
ensure public accessibility, deemed reasonable to the 
Minister, to all common recreational/cultural facilities 
approved under the lease agreement”.

86



History
2019 – The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
inherited the disposition following the dissolution of the 
former Town of Grande Cache. The lease was expired and 
non-compliant with the Public Lands Act at the time. 

87



Provincial Disposition (Current)
• Greenview Administration received a renewed lease for 

Fireman’s Pit in 2022. (REC 850036)
• Greenview Administration applied for a conversion 

from a recreation lease to the newly developed tourism 
and commercial recreation lease in March 2023. This 
has not been processed at this time and an anticipated 
timeline has not been provided. 

88



Proposed Sublease
As noted in the former Town of Grande Cache’s initial 
lease application, the Grande Cache Fire Department 
built the site and has operated it since. As such, 
Administration is pursuing options to put a formal 
sublease in place for the operation of the site. This is a 
recommendation that will come to Council for approval.

Another option would be to pursue having the lease 
transferred to the Grande Cache Firefighter’s Association. 
However, in conversations with local Alberta Forest, 
Parks and Tourism staff, this option is not encouraged by 
the Province. 

89



Insurance Requirements

Current Issue: 
The Association currently 
does not hold asset or 
liability insurance for 
Fireman’s Pit. 
Adequate insurance will be 
a requirement of the 
proposed sublease. 

Proposed Solution:
Administration will make a 
recommendation motion 
to Council to add the 
Association to Greenview’s 
Additional Named Insured 
List, thus providing access 
to reduced insurance rates. 

90



Infrastructure - Ownership
As the disposition holder, all assets on the property are 
automatically owned by Greenview. However, the Grande 
Cache Firefighter’s Association has purchased and 
maintained all infrastructure, with no evidence of direct 
funding for the site from either the former Town of 
Grande Cache or Greenview. 

As such, Administration recommends entering into an 
agreement with the Association granting them 
ownership of all assets. This would include a clause that 
if the sublease was terminated or the Association was to 
fold, all assets would transfer back to Greenview. 

91



Infrastructure & Assets - List
- Cookshack with BBQs
- Outhouse
- Playground Equipment
- Horseshoe Pits
- Picnic Tables
- Benches
- Fire Pit
- Outdoor Lighting

- Paved basketball pad 
- Entrance Gate
- Perimeter Fence

92



93



Infrastructure - Concerns
Both the Association and Greenview Administration have 
identified some concerns with the current infrastructure, 
including:

• The playground equipment does not meet current playground 
safety code compliance and requires removal or replacement.

• The outhouse building is reaching the end of its life expectancy and 
will require replacement. 

• The perimeter fence has a portion remaining to be upgraded from 
barbed wire to chain-link. 

• The cookshack will need some maintenance.

The Association is looking into options for upgrading this 
infrastructure once an agreement is in place for infrastructure 
ownership and approval is provided. Should Council approve 
this agreement to be put in place, the Association will be 
eligible for grants that Greenview could not apply for if we 
retain ownership.

94



95



96



Site Operations
Historically, this site has been accessible to the public 
for rentals through the Grande Cache Firefighter’s 
Association. These rentals have incurred a reasonable 
fee, which is retained by the Association. 

During COVID, this site was unable to operate, and 
some confusion has existed following Greenview taking 
over the lease. Administration has provided the 
Association the go ahead to continue renting the site 
while we pursue formalizing agreements. 

97



Concerns: Public Accessibility
As a recreation lease on public lands, the intent of the 
lease is to provide recreational opportunities to the 
public. The Association has voiced questions on what 
their specific requirements are to provide access to the 
site to the public. For example, can the Association block 
off rentals for x number of weekends throughout the 
summer for their private use. 
As such, Administration is working with Alberta Forestry, 
Parks and Tourism to obtain clear direction on the 
requirements for public access and overall expectations. 
Once this information is confirmed, the Association will 
be updated. These requirements will also be clearly 
outlined within any sublease documents. 

98



Concerns: Processing of Firewood
One identified concern about the current operation of 
the recreation site is that wood is being processed on 
location by a 3rd party and then being sold for profit. This 
is likely an activity that has continued since the 1992 
approval listed earlier in the presentation.

This is anticipated to be a prohibited activity on a 
recreation lease within public lands. Administration will 
receive clarification from the Province and respond 
accordingly. 

99



Greenview’s Current Investment
• Annual Lease Fee - $105.00 in 2022 – Paid by 

Greenview. 
• Insurance Costs – Greenview currently holds both 

liability and asset insurance for the site. Asset insurance 
can be removed once an agreement is in place for 
ownership, if approved. 

• Maintenance – The former Town of Grande Cache 
provided lawn mowing and garbage removal for the 
site. This services was grandfathered in during the 
dissolution and still continues. Administration 
estimates that this costs approximately $9, 500.00 per 
year. This will be brought forward to Council for 
approval as an in kind donation. 

100



Request for Decision to be brought forward at the 
Regular Council Meeting on May 23rd, 2023:

1. That Council authorize Administration to establish a 
formal sublease with the Grande Cache Firefighter’s 
Association for the operation of Fireman’s Pit.

2. That Council authorize Administration to enter into an 
agreement with the Grande Cache Firefighter’s 
Association to identify the Association as the legal 
owner of all infrastructure located at Fireman’s Pit.

3. That Council authorize Administration to provide lawn 
mowing services at Fireman’s Pit, as an in kind 
donation to the Grande Cache Firefighter’s 
Association, for a period of 3-years. 

Proposed Next Steps

101



Questions?

102



Fireman's Pit Location

1 Mi
1 Km

Scale 1: 42,770

The MD of Greenview makes no representation or warranties regarding the information contained in
this document, including without limitation, whether said information is accurate or complete.
Persons using this document do so solely at their own risk, and the MD of Greenview shall have no
liability to such person for any loss or damage whatsoever. This document shall not be copied or
distributed to any person without the express written consent of the MD of Greenview. Copyright MD
of Greenview. All Rights Reserved.

Date Created: 4/28/2023

103



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Ridgevalley Streetlights 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: JF 
DEPARTMENT: INFRASTRUCTURE & ENGINEERING DIR: RA PRESENTER: RA 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the Ridgevalley Streetlights report, for information, as 
presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
In 2021 and 2022 Administration received two verbal requests regarding street lighting along Range Road 
262 for students going to and from the Ridgevalley School. It is felt, this is a real safety concern for children 
crossing the road in the darker months.  

Administration began the process of investigating the need for street lighting in Ridgevalley by reaching out 
to ATCO requesting two quotes, “A” cost request that is the minimum for children to safely walk to and from 
the Ridgevalley School and “B” cost request, is for adding lighting to the interior streets that currently have 
no streetlights. ATCO also supplied routing plans for both options, please see attached. 

The streetlighting within an area can be financially funded solely by the Municipality or by the local electrical 
distributor. Greenview currently does not own the streetlights within Ridgevalley. 

With the Investment option, the lighting fixtures are installed, owned, and maintained by ATCO Electric, and 
will be responsible for the full cost of end-of-life replacement. See attached proposal letter for a more 
detailed estimate. 

With the No Investment option, the lighting fixtures are installed, owned, and maintained by ATCO Electric 
however, Greenview would be responsible for the full cost of placement. See attached proposal letter for a 
more detailed estimate. 

The Investment Options will increase with the number of streetlights (Poles and lights) being changed. 

104



 
 

 

ATCO provided the estimates below for both cost requests. 
 

Cost 
Request 

Included Original Cost ATCO 
Community 
Funding 

Greenview 
Contribution 

GST Cost to 
Greenview 

A 8 new streetlights on 
existing poles and 1 
new streetlight davit 

$56,462.64 $24,885.00 $31,577.64 $1,578.88 $33,156.52 

B 9 new streetlight 
davits  

$162,203.39 $24,885.00 $154,479.42 $7,723.97 $162,203.39 

 TOTAL $195,359.91 
(The davit pole is a curved alternative to the octagonal pole that can be used in the same streetscape contexts) 
 
As of April 21, 2023, the investment in the proposal by ATCO is believed to be the only contributor/grant 
available regarding street lighting but will continue to explore all available grants.  
 
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is that they will have 
detailed information to make an informed decision on adding extra street lighting to Ridgevalley. 
 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to make a recommendation to Council to proceed 
with streetlighting in Ridgevalley. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no financial implications to the recommended motion. 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
To date, it is estimated Administration has spent 3 hours. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 

105



 
 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will proceed as directed by Committee of the Whole. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Routing Plan (Cost Request A) 
• Routing Plan (Cost Request B) 
•  Proposal Letter 

106



2 AVE N

M
AI

N
 S

T

1 
ST

. W

1 AVE N

1 
ST

. W
ES

T

LOT 1

4

1
1

B

1

5 1

LOT 15

4

1

1

1

4

1

1

I

I

I

I

I

I

III II
I

I

I

I

I

I

@

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

@I

@

II

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

1 x #8 HI CON1 x #8 HI CON NEUTRAL

1 x #8 HI CON
1 x #8 HI CON NEUTRAL

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

2 x #4 ACSR

1 x #4 ACSR

2 x #8 HI CON

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

1 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

 N
EU

TR
A

L

1 x #4 ACSR

2 x #8 HI CON

3 x #4 ACSR
1 x #4 ACSR NEUTRAL

1 
x 

#4
 A

C
SR

3 x #1/0 ACSR

●●
●

●●● ●●● ●●●●●●

●●
●

●●●●●●

●●
●■

●●●●●●

●●
●

●●●
●●●

●●●
●●●

●●●●
●

● ●

●●●

● ● ● ●

●●●
●●

●
● ●

●
●●

●
●●

●
●●●

●●●

●
●

●
●

282308

282310
282313 948902

790646790647

282296

282274

282273

282307

282295

282294

282304

282293

282292

282303

282302

282301

282276

282275

282272

282271

282270

282269

538755

282267

282298

282291

282278 282277
282281 282280 282279

282299

282311

282314

282290

282289

282288

282287

538754

282297

282268

797761

282309

895071895072797757

967284 797760

908744

282312

538753

797937

POEC-EA204186789

POEC-EA204215621

aA2B2C2

A1
B1

C
1

!

Y

m

<

b

b
b

b

b

b

b

d

d

d bb

b

S50671
East

S50672
West

S50656
East

S50673
East

S99158

S117561
5 KS

S131328
10 KS
North

S131497
300

WestS131321
300

North

S131469
300
West

S88928
6 TS88929

S91641
West

F

F

F

E

E

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

E

A

F
S88933

S88850

S88930

S88932

S88934

S88931

S75125

S109873

X

X

X

X

j

j

ABC

ABC

J

J

J

J
J

J

J

J

J

J
J

J

J

J

J

●■

●
■

●■ ●■ ●■ ●■

100W High Pressure Sodium

XL (REV LEGACY)

TOWNSHIP RD 713

45/4 2017
N12 N55
G40B G40B
N0C R0

45/3 1997
X41B

45/4 2017
N12 N55
G40B G40B
N0C R0

45/4 2017
N12 N55
G40B G40B
N0C R0

30/7 1974
X408-A1

X40B

40/4 1997
N12 X0 X40B
X393

40/3 1964
N12 X40A
X40B X0
G10A

45/4 1980
N12 R154 R171

X12A X40B X393
G10A

40/6 1981
X408-A1 N12
R280 R270 R289
X12A X40B E12

35/6 1981
X408-A1 N12
X12A

40/5 1981
N12 R154
R171 X12A

35/3 1985
X408-A1 N12
X12A X40B

35/3 1985
X408-A1 N12
X12A X40B

40/5 1981
N12 X12A
X40B X396

40/5 1981
X408-A1 N12
R280 R270 R289
2/X40A E12

35/5 1981
X408-A1 N12
X12A

40/4 1988
N12 R154
R171 X0
X40A X0B
2/G10A

40/5 2004
R140 R390

E12A

S1

S2

S3

S4

S5

S6

S7

S8

S9

I

I

I

I
I

I

I

I I I I

II

@

40/5 1990
R112 X40B
X393

I

I

I

I

282305
40/5 1990
R112 X40B
X393

282306
40/3 1970
R140 2/R180
R189 2/X393
X40B E12

NOTES:
1. DISTANCES ARE IN METERS AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

2. RED - NEW BLACK - EXISTING
MAGNETA - MODIFY GREEN - SALVAGE
CYAN - REPLACE OR RE-CONDUCTOR

3) SITE ID: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

AS BUILT
 No Changes
 Changes Shown In red

Date:_______________________

Crew Lead___________________
(print name)

Crew Lead___________________
(Signature)

POWER POLE

LUMINAIRE

O/H 1 PHASE O/H 3 PHASE●●●●
●●●● 0/H 3PH. W/ NEUTRAL0/H 1PH. W/ NEUTRAL

1 PH./3 PH. TRANSFORMER

FUSED SWITCH GANG SWITCH

SOLID BLADE SWITCH

ANCHOR

RISER POLE

●●●■●■ U/G 3 PHASEU/G 1 PHASE

Primary Meter

CIRCUIT RECLOSERS

LEGEND:

PM

OVR

DESIGN CONTACT
ELIZA VELOSO

(403) 312-5311

eliza.veloso@atco.com

REV DATE DESCRIPTION BY
0 02/03/23 PRELIMINARY DESIGN EV

1:2000
DRAWN BY: DATE:

SCALE:CHECKED BY:

DRAWING TITLE:

DWG #:

PROJECT NO.: LOCATION:1085801

Ridgevalley Street Lighting (Option 1)
SW23 71-26-W5

RIDGEVALLEY

1085801-0

EV 02/22/2023
EA107

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF ATCO ELECTRIC LTD.  AND CONTAINS PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION WHICH MUST NOT BE DUPLICATED, USED OR DISCLOSED OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED BY ATCO ELECTRIC LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING APPROVAL



2 AVE N

M
AI

N
 S

T

1 
ST

. W

1 AVE N

1 
ST

. W
ES

T

2 
ST

. W
ES

T

1 AVE NORTH

1A AVE NORTH

LOT 1

4

5

B

5 1

5

4

5

4

1

1

4

6

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

II

I

I

II

II I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

@

I

I

!

!

!

!

!

1 x #8 HI CON1 x #8 HI CON NEUTRAL

1 x #8 HI CON
1 x #8 HI CON NEUTRAL

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

2 x #4 ACSR1 x #4 ACSR

2 x #8 HI CON

3 
x 

#6
 A

C
SR

1 x #4 ACSR

1 
x 

#4
 A

C
SR

1 x #4 ACSR

282274

282273

282293

282292

282302

282301

282276

282275

282272

282271

282270

282269

538755

282267

282266

282291

282278 282277
282281 282280 282279

282282

282299

282287

538754

337094

282284

282286

908744

282285

538752

538753

POEC-EA204215621

a

!
t

!

m

m

b

b
bb

b

S50671

East

S50672

West

S50656

East
S99158

S91641

West

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

B

F

F

S88850

S88930

S88932

S88934

S88931

S75125

S99191

S89599

X

X

J

J

J

J

J
J

J J

●■ ●■

●
■

●
■

●■

●■

●■ ●■ ●■ ●■ ●■

S1
X416-A9

S2
X416-A9

S3
X416-A9

S5
X416-A9

S6
X416-A9

S7 S8 S9

I

I

I

282283
35/6 1987
R210 G10A

35/6 1987
R212 40/6 1997

R212 R280
R270 R289
X40A E12
G10A

S4
X416-A9

I I

AS BUILT
 No Changes
 Changes Shown In red

Date:_______________________

Crew Lead___________________
(print name)

Crew Lead___________________
(Signature)

POWER POLE

LUMINAIRE

O/H 1 PHASE O/H 3 PHASE●●●●
●●●● 0/H 3PH. W/ NEUTRAL0/H 1PH. W/ NEUTRAL

1 PH./3 PH. TRANSFORMER

FUSED SWITCH GANG SWITCH

SOLID BLADE SWITCH

ANCHOR

RISER POLE

●●●■●■ U/G 3 PHASEU/G 1 PHASE

Primary Meter

CIRCUIT RECLOSERS

LEGEND:

PM

OVR

N

1:2000
DRAWN BY: DATE:

SCALE:CHECKED BY:

DRAWING TITLE:

DWG #:

PROJECT NO.: LOCATION:1085801

Ridgevalley Street Lighting (Option 2)
SW23 71-26-W5

RIDGEVALLEY

1085801-0

EV 02/22/2023
EA

NOTES:
1. DISTANCES ARE IN METERS AND DECIMALS THEREOF.

2. RED - NEW BLACK - EXISTING
MAGNETA - MODIFY GREEN - SALVAGE
CYAN - REPLACE OR RE-CONDUCTOR

3) SITE ID: XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

DESIGN CONTACT
ELIZA VELOSO

(403) 312-5311

eliza.veloso@atco.com

REV DATE DESCRIPTION BY
0 02/03/2023 PRELIMINARY DESIGN EV

108

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF ATCO ELECTRIC LTD.  AND CONTAINS PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION WHICH MUST NOT BE DUPLICATED, USED OR DISCLOSED OTHER THAN AS EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED BY ATCO ELECTRIC LTD.



 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 1 

March 17, 2023 
 
MD of Greenview # 16  
4806 – 36 Avenue PO Box 1079 
Valleyview, AB   
T0H 3N0 
 
Attention Roger Autio – Ridgevalley: 
 
Re:  Proposal for SW-23-71-26-W5M  
 Our File: 1085801  
 
Thank you for giving ATCO Electric the opportunity to submit a Proposal at the above noted location. The cost and 
technical details presented in this proposal are based on information provided by you at the time of application. A site 
visit may be completed after proposal acceptance depending on the negotiated in-service date.  
 
Commercial Terms 

   

☐ Ballpark: Cost Request A: 8 new streetlights on existing poles and one new streeetlight davit 

 Rate Schedule: D61B Street Light (Inv Option) 

 Original Cost: $56,462.64 

 ATCO Electric’s available investment: ($24,885.00) 

   

 Customer Contribution: $31,577.64 

 GST: $1,578.88 

 Cost To Customer: $33,156.52 

   

 Distribution contract demand: N/A 25 year investment term, 5 year initial term 

 Rate minimum monthly demand: D61B-N/A 

☐ Ballpark: Cost Request B: 9 new streetlight davits 
 

 Rate Schedule: D61B Street Light (Inv Option) 

 Original Cost: $179,364.42 

 ATCO Electric’s available investment: ($24,885.00) 

   

 Customer Contribution: $154,479.42 

 GST: $7,723.97 

 Cost To Customer: $162,203.39 

   

 Distribution contract demand: N/A 25 year investment term, 5 year initial term 

 Rate minimum monthly demand: D61B-N/A 

 
 
Invested Option: The lighting fixtures are installed, owned and maintained by ATCO Electric. ATCO Electric is responsible 
for full cost of end of life replacement. 
No Investment Option: The lighting fixtures are installed, owned and maintained by ATCO Electric.  The customer is 
responsible for full cost of replacement 
  

109



 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 2 

 
Please review the contents of the proposal carefully and provide your acceptance or rejection within 90 days. 
 
Thank you for working with us to provide your electric service requirements. If you have any questions or would like to 
discuss this proposal, please call me at 403-312-5311.  
 
Eliza Veloso 
Customer Connection Expeditor 
403-312-5311 
eliza.veloso@atco.com  
 
  

110

mailto:eliza.veloso@atco.com


 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 3 

 
Scope of Services 

SW-23-71-26-W5M  
Project #1085801 

Customer responsibility to the project includes: 

• Staking final grade in area of construction. 

• Ensuring any required municipal development permits are in place. 

• Signing and returning the Customer Acknowledgement Project Acceptance page of this proposal.  The Land Title 
holder must sign the proposal.   

ATCO Electric’s responsibility to the project includes: 

• Supplying and installing  (8 – 73W LED Luminaries on existing wood poles & 1 – 73W LED in 9m Steel Davits) or  
(6 – 73W LED in 9m Steel Davits & 3 73W LED Luminaires on existing wood poles.)   
 

This estimate is subject to the following assumptions:  
Route selection and ability to acquire third party approvals required for route selection, site location and scope of work 
determined using customer provided information does not change. Any customer made changes after acceptance will 
be invoiced to the customer.  
 
The Customer Guide to New Extensions details the process we’ll follow to connect your new service to the electricity 
distribution grid. 
 
Installing a new or upgraded service that will be energized by ATCO? Check out our Customer Metering and Service 
Guide to make sure the meter is installed correctly and safely. This guide provides metering configurations and 
specifications for most services under 750 volts. 
 
 
 
  

111

https://www.atco.com/en-ca/for-home/electricity/our-services/new-connections-changes.html
https://www.atco.com/content/dam/web/for-home/electricity/new-egbu-customer-metering-guide.pdf
https://www.atco.com/content/dam/web/for-home/electricity/new-egbu-customer-metering-guide.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 4 

  
Additional Terms of Agreement 

SW-23-71-26-W5M  
Project #1085801 

 
1. This Proposal for Electric Service is valid for 90 calendar days from the date of this proposal. 
2. Customer acceptance of ATCO Electric’s Cost Proposal is required before ATCO Electric will proceed with the 

project. Customer acceptance or rejection is recognized at the time ATCO Electric receives a signed copy of the 
Customer Acknowledgement Project Acceptance page from the customer.  

3. Upon receiving the Customer’s acceptance, ATCO Electric will forward an invoice to the Customer for the full 
amount of the Customer Contribution to the project.  The customer is responsible for paying the full amount of 
the invoice within 30 calendar days of receipt from ATCO Electric.  Construction will not commence until the 
customer contribution has been paid. 

4. Electric service will be delivered under our current price schedule D61B, D61B. Price schedules and company 
investments are in accordance with the ATCO Electric Customer Terms and Conditions for Electric Distribution 
Service as approved by the Alberta Utilities Commission. 

5. Distribution monthly charges will begin not more than 30 days following ATCO construction completion.  The 
minimum monthly distribution contract demand will be carried forward annually for the life of the service, 
(D61B-25 years, D61B-25 years). 

6. The minimum monthly charge while idle shall be as per the applicable price schedule. Price schedules are found 
on www.atco.com. 

7. The customer has the right to cancel this project at any time. The customer must notify ATCO Electric of its 
desire to cancel the project by contacting the ATCO Electric Representative listed on the Customer 
Acknowledgement Proposal Acceptance page of this proposal in writing. 

8. Customers who cancel a project prior to accepting ATCO Electric’s Proposal are not responsible for costs 
incurred by ATCO Electric to prepare the Proposal. 

9. Customers who cancel a project after accepting ATCO Electric’s Proposal are responsible and will be invoiced for 
the full amount of ATCO Electric services and costs incurred from the date of the customer application up to and 
including the date of cancellation. 

10. This Proposal for Electric Service is subject to the ATCO Electric Customer Terms and Conditions for Electric 
Distribution Service found on www.atco.com. These Terms and Conditions are approved by the Alberta Utilities 
Commission and are amended from time to time. If there is any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and 
conditions of this Proposal for Electric Service and the terms and conditions of the ATCO Electric Customer 
Terms and Conditions for Electric Distribution Service, the ATCO Electric Customer Terms and Conditions for 
Electric Distribution Service shall prevail to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency. 

11. The service described herein is provided for the Customer’s use only at the said location, and the Customer shall 
not permit any other person to use such service.  

12. ATCO Electric retains ownership and is responsible for the maintenance of the distribution facilities. 
13. Site identification numbers will be provided on your acceptance of this proposal. 
14. Customers are free to purchase electricity services from a retailer of their choice. For a list of retailers, visit 

ucahelps.alberta.ca or call 310-4822 (toll free in Alberta). ATCO’s employees are unable to provide a 
recommended supplier. 

15. For your additional assistance, ATCO Electric has developed the Customer Guide to New Extensions to help 
customers understand our business practices and processes for new or upgraded electric services. Your ATCO 
Electric Customer Connection Expeditor is available to review details of the Customer Guide with you at your 
convenience. 

112

http://www.atco.com/
http://www.atco.com/
https://ucahelps.alberta.ca/
https://www.atco.com/en-ca/for-home/electricity/our-services/new-connections-changes.html


 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 5 

Customer Acknowledgement 
Project Response 

SW-23-71-26-W5M  
Project #1085801 

Project Scope and Commercial Terms 
   

☐ Ballpark: Cost Request A: 8 new streetlights on existing poles and one new streeetlight davit 

 Rate Schedule: D61B Street Light (Inv Option) 

 Original Cost: $56,462.64 

 ATCO Electric’s available investment: ($24,885.00) 

   

 Customer Contribution: $31,577.64 

 GST: $1,578.88 

 Cost To Customer: $33,156.52 

   

 Distribution contract demand: N/A 25 year investment term, 5 year initial term 

 Rate minimum monthly demand: D61B-N/A 

☐ Ballpark: Cost Request B: 9 new streetlight davits 
 

 Rate Schedule: D61B Street Light (Inv Option) 

 Original Cost: $179,364.42 

 ATCO Electric’s available investment: ($24,885.00) 

   

 Customer Contribution: $154,479.42 

 GST: $7,723.97 

 Cost To Customer: $162,203.39 

   

 Distribution contract demand: N/A 25 year investment term, 5 year initial term 

 Rate minimum monthly demand: D61B-N/A 
   

Invested Option: The lighting fixtures are installed, owned and maintained by ATCO Electric. ATCO Electric is responsible 
for full cost of end of life replacement. 
No Investment Option: The lighting fixtures are installed, owned and maintained by ATCO Electric.  The customer is 
responsible for full cost of replacement 
 

Project Response 

☐ Accept Proposal ☐ Reject Proposal 
 
On behalf of MD of Greenview # 16, I   ___________________________ am authorized to execute this agreement. I 
acknowledge that I have reviewed this Proposal for Electric Service in its entirety and understand these Terms and 
Conditions, Additional Terms of Agreement, Project Scope and Commercial Terms and agree to be bound by them.   
 
Customer Signature:_____________________________ Date:_______________ 
 
Your opinion matters to us!   
But if you would prefer to not receive a follow-up survey regarding the services provided by ATCO, please initial 
here:___________ 
 

113



 
 
 
 
 

ATCO Ltd. & Canadian Utilities Limited |  ATCO.com  |  10035-105 Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5J 2V6 
 

 

Page 6 

Please send the completed form to: 
By Email to  eliza.veloso@atco.com or CustomerAcceptance@atco.com 
By Mail to  Attn: Eliza Veloso 
   ATCO Electric 
   919-11 Ave SW 
   Calgary Alberta 
   T2R 1P3 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Eliza Veloso 
Customer Connection Expeditor 
403-312-5311 
eliza.veloso@atco.com  
 

114

mailto:CustomerAcceptance@atco.com
mailto:eliza.veloso@atco.com


REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Weed Inspection Process 
SUBMISSION TO: AGRICULTURAL SERVICES BOARD REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: SK 
DEPARTMENT: AGRICULTURE DIR: MH PRESENTER: SK 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial: Weed Control Act Chapter W-5.1 RSA 2008 

Council Bylaw/Policy: Policy 6302: Roadside Vegetation Management, Policy 6303: Weed Control Policy, 
Bylaw 22-894: Designated Noxious Weeds 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accepts the Weed Inspection Process presentation for information, 
as presented.  

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
In 2021, the Weed Inspection Process within Greenview was revised in response to provincially appealed 
weed notice outcomes and to improve communications with Greenview landowners. With these changes, 
the Agricultural Services Department moved to an inspection process with an emphasis on increased 
documentation of the data and outcome of weed infestations. This strict adherence to the Weed Control Act 
notice parameters and documented outcomes is part of an overall shift to acting as a resource for Greenview 
ratepayers.  

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended action is that they will be

informed as to the weed inspection process currently used within Greenview.

DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. There are no disadvantages to the recommended motion.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to not accept the presentation for information. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: There are no direct costs to the recommended action. 

STAFFING IMPLICATION: 

115



 
 

 

There are no staffing implications associated with the recommended action. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
There are no follow-up actions to the recommended motion.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• PowerPoint  
 

116



Providing consistency and removing 
subjectivity with the communication matrix

117



• What does it mean to control a weed? 

• What does it mean to destroy a weed?

Before we begin….

118



• Inspections were conducted on a township-by-
township basis, documenting every property, weed 
infested or not

• Every door was knocked on
• All infestations, regardless of size got a notification 

letter
• Follow-up on letters was minimal, largely ignored 

by the public
• Only half of Greenview was inspected annually

The Previous Method

119



• Inspections were based on recorded infestation and 
species priority, according to seasonality

• Priority was placed on contact with landowner by 
way of phone call

• Follow-up on became mandatory on established 
infestations

• All of Greenview white zone was inspected – this is 
now an expectation

2021 Changes

120



• Letters were sent by the Agricultural Supervisor if 
phone contact could not be made or as the first 
step in elevation towards a weed notice.

• Implementation of a weed notice checklist with 
each potential notice, to ensure Greenviews
position if there were to be a provincial appeal

• Mandatory use of the Communications Matrix by 
all staff, with scores being totaled and added to the 
infestation file

2021 Changes

121



• Colonization 
follows 
specific 
patterns

Managing Invasive Species

122



Managing Invasive Species

123



Species Distribution
Infestations by Species

Species Private Greenview SEED VIABILITY Seeds Produced
CANADA THISTLE 1898 1400 1-5 yrs 1,500 – 5,000
TALL BUTTERCUP 753 3 2-4 yrs 250

SCENTLESS 
CHAMOMILE 589 15-30 yrs 1,000,000

PERENNIAL SOW 
THISTLE 225 3 yrs 4,000

OX-EYE DAISY 195 2-39 yrs 26,000
MEADOW 

HAWKWEED* 109 49 up to 7 yrs 60-1,500

COMMON TANSY 86 25+ yrs 50,000
BULL THISTLE 39 2 3 yrs

YELLOW TOADFLAX 18 up to 10 yrs 50,000
ORANGE HAWKWEED 11 up to 7 yrs 50-750

WHITE COCKLE 8 3 yrs 26,000
BURDOCK 5 1-3 yrs 6,000-16,000

HIMALAYAN BALSAM 5 2 yrs 700-800
MARSH THISTLE 6 1-3 yrs 300-2,000

GARLIC MUSTARD 1 5+ yrs 350-7,900
124



Communications Matrix
• Matrix originated with 

Northern Sunrise County
• Adapted to incorporate 

specifics of Greenviews
infestations

• Assess each infestation 
along the same criteria with 
weighting specific to 
Greenviews infestations

Severity of 
Infestation

+
Stage

+
Proximity

+
History

+
Species

+

=
POINTS

0-7

8-15

16-22

23+

WEED INSPECTORS NEXT STEP PER ESTABLISHED COMMUNICATION TABLE

NEXT STEP BY INSPECTOR

Monitor for increase, new species.  Call landowner, make aware 
"Cheaper to control now"

Reoccuring phone calls, Inspection Report, Fact Sheet(s), av ailable 
contractors lists, mech and cultural controls

SKELETON(+1)

Going to seed - 
too late except C. 

Thistle

Control within 10-
14 days

Control within 15-
20 days

Confirmed 
presence, make 

aware

TOTAL POINTS

Listed as Early 
action, 

enforcement

SEED (+4)

CONCERN 2 (+8)CONCERN 3 (+20) CONCERN 1 (+6)

Canada Thistle, 
Perennial Sow 
Thistle, Creeping 
Bellflower

Continued attempt to work with producer, offer assistance, phone calls, 
alert Superv isor, potential Weed Notice

Phone calls ev ery 3 days, Re-inspect, Warning Letter, Inspection Report, 
Fact Sheet(s), Offer assistance, alert Superv isor

Within 250 m of 
stream, lake, riv er, 

pond

Within 250 m of 
property line

Within 250 m of a 
roadway

<250 m 
boundaries or 

waterways

Listed as 
controlled 

prev ious years

Listed as monitor First record

Common Tansy, 
Scentless Chamomile, 
Ox-Eye Daisy, Toadflax

COMPLIANCE(-2)
NON 

COMPLIANCE (+6)
NEW (2)

PREVIOUS 
CONTACT (+3)

ALL PROHIBITED 
NOXIOUS, New 
Noxious

LOW CONCERN (-
2)

Tall Buttercup, 
White Cockle

EXTREME (+4) SEVERE (+3) MODERATE (+2) LOW (+1)

WATERWAY (+4) NEIGHBOURS (+2)ROADWAY (+3) ISOLATED(-1)

Found through-out Heav y in areas, 
less or none in 

others

Clumps of weeds, 
sporadic

At fringes of area, 
fenclines

FLOWER (+3) ROSETTE (+2)

125



• Linked to area infested and length of time 
• Specific colonization pattern of species

Severity of Infestation

• Weed is not well established
• Greatest chance of 

eradication
• Cheapest to control now

126



• Linked to area infested and length of time 
• Specific colonization pattern of species

Severity of Infestation

• Weed is getting comfy
• Still good chance of 

eradication
• Cost effective to control

127



• Linked to area infested and length of time 
• Specific colonization pattern of species

Severity of Infestation

• Weed is becoming entrenched
• Eradication may not be possible
• Control becoming more costly

128



• Linked to area infested and length of time 
• Specific colonization pattern of species

Severity of Infestation

• Weed is entrenched
• Control efforts only
• Costly to maintain control

129



Stage, Proximity, and History
• Stage of the infestation 

impacts what control 
efforts are practical

• Proximity to property 
lines helps assess 
impact to Greenview 
and neighbours

• History helps us know 
if a firmer or gentler 
nudge is needed

  

Stage

+
Proximity

+
History

+

       

   

          
   

          
      

SKELETON(+1)

Going to seed - 
too late except C. 

Thistle

Control within 10-
14 days

Control within 15-
20 days

Confirmed 
presence, make 

aware

 

Listed as Early 
action, 

enforcement

SEED (+4)

      

  
  

  

          

          
   

Within 250 m of 
stream, lake, riv er, 

pond

Within 250 m of 
property line

Within 250 m of a 
roadway

<250 m 
boundaries or 

waterways

Listed as 
controlled 

prev ious years

Listed as monitor First record

  
  

  

COMPLIANCE(-2)
NON 

COMPLIANCE (+6)
NEW (2)

PREVIOUS 
CONTACT (+3)

  
  

  

  
 

    

WATERWAY (+4) NEIGHBOURS (+2)ROADWAY (+3) ISOLATED(-1)

    
    

       

FLOWER (+3) ROSETTE (+2)

130



Species
• Species rating relates to populations within 

Greenview, to maximize impact over many species of 
concern. 

  

Species

+

       

   

          
   

          
      

    
    

  
 

  
 

 
  

 

   
 

 

CONCERN 2 (+8)CONCERN 3 (+20) CONCERN 1 (+6)

Canada Thistle, 
Perennial Sow 
Thistle, Creeping 
Bellflower

          

          
   

    
   

    
 

     
  

  

  
 

 

   

Common Tansy, 
Scentless Chamomile, 
Ox-Eye Daisy, Toadflax

 
 

 
 

 

ALL PROHIBITED 
NOXIOUS, New 
Noxious

LOW CONCERN (-
2)

Tall Buttercup, 
White Cockle

    

   

    
    

       

  

Burdock

131



Species Distribution
Infestations by Species

Species Private Greenview SEED VIABILITY Seeds Produced
CANADA THISTLE 1898 1400 1-5 yrs 1,500 – 5,000
TALL BUTTERCUP 753 3 2-4 yrs 250

SCENTLESS 
CHAMOMILE 589 15-30 yrs 1,000,000

PERENNIAL SOW 
THISTLE 225 3 yrs 4,000

OX-EYE DAISY 195 2-39 yrs 26,000
MEADOW 

HAWKWEED* 109 49 up to 7 yrs 60-1,500

COMMON TANSY 86 25+ yrs 50,000
BULL THISTLE 39 2 3 yrs

YELLOW TOADFLAX 18 up to 10 yrs 50,000
ORANGE HAWKWEED 11 up to 7 yrs 50-750

WHITE COCKLE 8 3 yrs 26,000
BURDOCK 5 1-3 yrs 6,000-16,000

HIMALAYAN BALSAM 5 2 yrs 700-800
MARSH THISTLE 6 1-3 yrs 300-2,000

GARLIC MUSTARD 1 5+ yrs 350-7,900
132



Next Steps
• The five sections are totaled up and that total 

directs next steps by the inspector. Dependant on 
species, multi-inspections at same site 

  

POINTS

0-7

8-15

16-22

23+

       

NEXT STEP BY INSPECTOR

Monitor for increase, new species.  Call landowner, make aware 
"Cheaper to control now"

Reoccuring phone calls, Inspection Report, Fact Sheet(s), av ailable 
contractors lists, mech and cultural controls

    
    

  
 

  
 

 
  

 

   
 

 

      

  
  

  

Continued attempt to work with producer, offer assistance, phone calls, 
alert Superv isor, potential Weed Notice

Phone calls ev ery 3 days, Re-inspect, Warning Letter, Inspection Report, 
Fact Sheet(s), Offer assistance, alert Superv isor

    
   

    
 

     
  

  

  
 

 

   

  
  

  

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

  

  
 

    

   

    
    

       

  

133



After the growing season…
• Continued communication with landowners
• Early discussions and promotion of weed control 

programs
• Identification of infestations that may require a 

weed notice.

134



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Expression of Interest Topics for Discussion 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: JF 
DEPARTMENT: OPERATIONS DIR: RA PRESENTER: JF 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Governance LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – New West Partnership Trade Agreement (Article 14); Canadian Free Trade Agreement 
(Article 504.3)      

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Policy 4004 - Equipment Contractors Registry 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

MOTION: That Committee of the Whole accept the discussion regarding Greenview’s Expression of Interest 
(EOI) and short-term contract hiring for information, as presented.  

MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to choose one or all of the following 
Expression of Interest cost-saving measures; 

1) Combined pricing and equipment hiring of contractors
2) The ability for Administration to utilize a single contractor for smaller projects
3) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road water truck services
4) Tendering Forestry Trunk Road dozer services for snow drifts
5) Requesting annual quotes from contractors in lieu of using Alberta Road Builders Association rates.

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
Greenview’s contractor hiring procedures have varied over the years with one consistent motive, to hire local 
contractors. Until 2016, the EOI program (also referred to as Equipment Bid Registry) was administered using 
local contractors providing competitive pricing while policies directed hiring based upon the lowest quoted 
rate. In light of discussions around the 2023 budget, Administration would like to provide the Committee with 
some background information and propose discussions around the following topics: 

• Combined pricing and equipment hiring of contractors who own multiple pieces of equipment that
frequently work together. (ie. an excavator and body job gravel truck working together on ditch
cleaning, a mulcher and power saw operators, a grader with a packer and dozer, etc.)

• The ability for Administration to organize smaller projects to be quoted and completed by a single
local contractor within the EOI. (i.e. smaller ditch cleaning projects, maintenance road repairs on the
Forestry Trunk Road, etc.)

135



 
 

 

• Tendering or quoting annual water truck services for the Forestry Trunk Road. (2022 Actuals for water 
trucks on the Forestry Trunk Road are $543,353.64) 

• Tendering or quoting dozer services for pushing back drifts and snowbanks on the south portion of 
the Forestry Trunk Road. (Expenses are approximately $250,000.00 annually depending on 
conditions.) 

• Requesting annual quotes from individual local contractors for hourly and tonne/km rates as part of 
the EOI Package as an alternative to paying 100% of the Alberta Roadbuilders and Heavy Construction 
Association’s (ARHCA) rates. (Attached to this RFD is an excerpt from 2012’s Contractor Registry as 
well as the annual advertisement from 2010 and previous policies.) 

o 89% of ARHCA was the chosen rate when first implementing the EOI Program in its current 
form as this was the average rate when contractors provided competitive pricing. 

 
By following the recommendations above, Administration will have the ability to work cohesively with other 
departments, and contractors and organize projects while following Council’s Strategic Plan “Maintaining 
Fiscal Responsibility”.  
  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion for discussion is that 
Council will have additional information regarding contractor expenses. 
 

2. The benefit of Committee of the Whole recommending to Council to choose one or all of the following 
Expression of Interest cost-saving measures is that Administration will have direction. 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to not enter into discussion regarding contractor 
hiring. Administration does not recommend this as it is a subject pertinent to current budgetary 
considerations and is a follow-up to previous discussions.   
 
Alternative #2: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to not recommend any changes to Council. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: In 2022 Contractor Expenses from directly hiring equipment and trucks from the EOI Listing 
were approximately $5,800,000.00 
Ongoing / Future Costs: TBD 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

136



 
 

 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
There are no direct follow-up actions to the recommended motion.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• 2022 Contractor Expenses Summary 
• Contractor Hiring Practices of Various Municipalities 
• Policy PW 10 (Inactive) 
• Policy PW 07 (Inactive) 
• 2014-2015 Contractor Listing with Bid Rates 

137



2022 Heavy Equipment Hiring Expenses
Potential Expense at 
89%

Potential Savings of 
Quoted Rates

Operations 1,926,170.24$                 1,714,291.51$               211,878.73$                          
Construction & Engineering 1,909,515.28$                 1,699,468.60$               210,046.68$                          
Total 3,835,685.52$                 3,413,760.11$               421,925.41$                          

2022 Gravel Truck Hiring Expenses
Potential Expense at 
89%

Potential Savings of 
Quoted Rates

Operations - Combined Stockpiling 3,357,601.99$                 2,988,265.77$               369,336.22$                          
Operations - Road Regravelling/All Other Hauling 2,417,288.41$                 2,151,386.68$               265,901.73$                          
Total 5,774,890.40$                 5,139,652.46$               635,237.94$                          

2022 Water Trucks on the Forestry Trunk Road Expenses
Potential Expense at 
89%

Potential Combined 
Savings of Quoted Rates 
(89%)

Operations - Water trucks for dust control program as well as 
continued dust control through summer

543,353.64$                    483,584.73$                  1,057,163.35$                      

2022 Contractor Expenses Summary - Short Term Contractor Hiring from Expression of Interest Program 
(To Date: Oct. 26, 2022)

138



Practices of Various Municipalities 
Equipment and Gravel Truck Hiring 

Big Lakes County 

• Each year an ad requesting bids goes out: 1 for equipment and 1 for gravel trucks 
• Council sets a municipal rate and contractors bid a percentage of the rate 
• Bids are accepted after the closing date but those bids are automatically added to the 

bottom of the list no matter what the rate is 
• Local trucks and equipment are prioritized before non-local even if their bid rate is 

higher 

County of Grande Prairie 

• Projects are posted on Alberta Purchasing Connection: 2-year contracts for gravel 
hauling to roads and stockpiling programs with options to extend 

• Equipment contractors submit rate sheets for shorter projects 
• Contractors are chosen based on bid rates and proximity to projects 
• Travel time is paid but contractors are strategically chosen to work as locally as possible 
• Past performance with the County is taken into consideration when hiring 

MD of Smoky River 

• The MD of Smoky River owns 5 super b gravel trucks and does its own gravel program 
• Other equipment is hired based upon bid price, availability, and proximity to project 
• Local hiring is prioritized 

Woodlands County 

• An equipment and truck binder with Workers Compensation Board clearance, proof of 
insurance, etc… is compiled annually 

• Equipment and trucks submit bid rates, lowest bids are prioritized with consideration for 
work history, condition of equipment, competency of operator, proximity to jobsite. No 
consideration for local or non-local contractors. 1 mob and 1 demob is paid per project. 

• For the annual re-gravelling program, a Request For Proposal goes out and the County 
determines the most cost-effective means to complete the work 

Birch Hills County 

• Heavy equipment provide a proposed bid rate 
• Jobs worth $50,000 or higher are put to tender 
• A contractor list is compiled for gravel trucks annually with preference for local owner-

operators 
• Highest priority is given to local resident contractors with years of experience hauling 

for the County 
 

139



 
 

 

 
M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 

 
POLICY NUMBER:  PW 10 

 
POLICY TITLE: GRAVEL TRUCK HIRING  Page 1 of 2 
 
Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:  03.04.170 
 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
To ensure that the Municipal District institutes a cost effective method of hiring gravel trucks. 
 
POLICY: 
 
The Municipal District shall establish an annual list of all available gravel trucks willing to work for the 
Municipal District. 
 
The Municipal District will establish fair and equitable rates as determined by the Superintendent of Public 
Works and approved by Council for major, unique or remote gravel hauling projects. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
 1.0 The Superintendent of Public Works shall advertise annually, for a minimum of two weeks prior t o 
March 15th, requesting gravel truck owners to supply their rates per hour and per tonne kilometer to be effective 
until April 1st of the following year. 
 
 2.0 All submissions received must be sealed and post-marked prior to or including the day of deadline for 
submissions. 
 
 3.0 Upon opening of submissions, the Superintendent of Public Works shall ensure that all submissions: 
 3.1 Are in good standing with the Municipal District; 
 3.2 Have supplied proof of a minimum $2,000,000 in liability insurance; 
 3.3 Have supplied proof of W.C.B. coverage;  
 3.4 Have provided proof of vehicle certification; and 
 3.5 Have signed the Contractor’s Safety Rule Book. 
 
 4.0 The annual list shall be presented to the Municipal Manager for approval. 
 
 5.0 The Superintendent of Public Works or designate shall attempt to contract the lowest bidder (or as per 
the municipality’s discretion in Clause 6.0 below) unless the bidder is unavailable or waives his/her right to 
work.  The Superintendent of Public Works may proceed to use the next lowest bidder upon receiving 
confirmation as stated above and a written record of contacts shall be maintained. 
 
 
 
 
 
      continued … 

140



 
 
 
 
POLICY TITLE: GRAVEL TRUCK HIRING  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 6.0 The Municipal District of Greenview reserves the right to contract any bid other than the lowest bid 
without stating reasons.  By the act of submitting its bid, the Bidder waives any right to contest in any legal 
proceeding or action the right of the Municipal District of Greenview to award the work to whomever it 
chooses, in its sole and unfettered discretion, and for whatever reasons the Municipality deems appropriate.  
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Municipal District of Greenview may consider any other 
factor besides price and capability to perform the work that it deems in its sole discretion to be relevant to its 
decision including but not limited to the following: 
 6.1 Any past experience with the Bidder, or lack thereof; 
 6.2 The results of any reference check done by the Municipal District of Greenview; 
 6.3 Information relating to the financial state of the Bidder, however obtained;  and 
 6.4 Production rates of equipment to be utilized. 
 
 7.0 Preferential hiring of Municipal District resident gravel trucks shall be considered when it is 
economically efficient and advantageous for the Municipal District. 
 
 8.0 Payment for major hauls and remote location may be dealt with as determined by the Superintendent of 
Public Works based on unique circumstances and shall be approved by Council.  Sign-off sheets will be used in 
this situation. 
 
 9.0 Only the annual list shall be used for work in the Municipal District, except for major haul/remote 
locations, however does not guarantee employment throughout the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
REEVE   C.A.O. 
 

141



 
 

 

 
M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 

 
POLICY NUMBER:  PW 07 

 
POLICY TITLE: EQUIPMENT HIRING  Page 1 of 2 
 
Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:  03.04.173 
 

 
PURPOSE: 
 
To ensure that the Municipal District institutes a cost effective method of hourly equipment hiring. 
 
POLICY: 
 
The Municipal District shall establish an annual list of hourly equipment available to work for the Municipal 
District. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
 1.0 The Superintendent of Public Works shall advertise annually, for a minimum of two weeks prior to 
March 15th, requesting hourly equipment owners to supply their rates per hour per unit type to be effective until 
April 1st of the following year. 
 
 2.0 All submissions received must be sealed and post marked prior to or including the day of deadline for 
submissions. 
 
 3.0 Upon opening of submissions, the Superintendent of Public Works shall ensure that all submissions: 
 3.1 Are in good standing with the Municipal District; 
 3.2 Have supplied proof of a minimum $2,000,000 in liability insurance; 
 3.3 Have supplied proof of W.C.B. coverage; and 
 3.4 Have signed a Contractor’s Safety Rule Book. 
 
 4.0 The equipment will be prioritized based on the bid prices as compared to the equipment rates listed in 
the previous years edition of the Alberta Road Builders and Heavy Construction Association publication. 
 
 5.0 The municipality shall pay haul rates for mobilization and de-mobilization of heavy equipment in 
accordance to the rates established by the Alberta Road Builders and Heavy Construction Association's 
equipment rental rates book. 
 
 6.0 The equipment owner shall be responsible for all moves and payments to third party contractors. 
 
 7.0 The annual list shall be presented to the Municipal Manager for approval. 
 
 8.0 The Superintendent of Public Works or designate shall attempt to contract the lowest bidder (or as per 
the municipality’s discretion in Clause 9.0 below) by determining the hourly rate and the haul rate combined and 
a written record of all contacts shall be maintained. 
 
 
     continued … 

142



 
 
 
 
POLICY TITLE: EQUIPMENT HIRING  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 9.0 The Municipal District of Greenview reserves the right to contract any bid other than the lowest bid 
without stating reasons.  By the act of submitting its bid, the Bidder waives any right to contest in any legal 
proceeding or action the right of the Municipal District of Greenview to award the work to whomever it 
chooses, in its sole and unfettered discretion, and for whatever reasons the Municipality deems appropriate.  
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Municipal District of Greenview may consider any other 
factor besides price and capability to perform the work that it deems in its sole discretion to be relevant to its 
decision including but not limited to the following: 
 9.1 Any past experience with the Bidder, or lack thereof; 
 9.2 The results of any reference check done by the Municipal District of Greenview; 
 9.3 Information relating to the financial state of the Bidder, however obtained; and 
 9.4 Production rates of equipment to be utilized. 
 
10.0 Preferential hiring of Municipal District resident equipment owners shall be considered when it is 
economically efficient and advantageous for the Municipal District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
REEVE   C.A.O. 
 

143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: 2023 Spring Community Grant Requests 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: 
DEPARTMENT: COMMUNITY SERVICES DIR: MH PRESENTER: LL/LD 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: SS 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – Policy 8002, Community Grants 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: That Committee of the Whole recommends that Council award the approved 2023 Spring 
Community Grants. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
The 2023 Community Grants & Sponsorships program has an approved budget of $1,500,000.00 out of which 
community grants and sponsorship funding is allotted.  There are two separate funding disbursement dates 
which are awarded in the winter and spring of each calendar year. 

Council approved $557,228.75 in grant funding in January 2023 of which $109,500.00 came from the 2023 
Agricultural Services Budget. The balance of the Community Grants Miscellaneous Budget as of June 20, 2023, 
is approximately $567,821.70. 

To aid Council in the grant review process, Administration is recommending that a decision framework be 
established.  The following questions may be considered: 

1) What types of groups or organizations should Greenview fund?
2) What is the criteria used when funding events?
3) Will Greenview fund charitable organizations?
4) Will Greenview fund groups competing with private industry?
5) Is there a degree of consistency and fairness?

A summary of the grant requests has been categorized into a spreadsheet. Administration provided 
recommendations with the grant applications for Council’s consideration. 

BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. The benefit of accepting the recommended motion is that Committee of the Whole will recommend

that Council award the 2023 Community Grants accordingly.

210



 
 

 

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. There are no perceived disadvantages to the recommended motion. 
 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the option to make alterations to the recommended amounts 
within the grant listing presented. 
 
Alternative #2:  Committee of the Whole has the alternative to defer any of the applications and request a 
presentation at a future Committee of the Whole meeting. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: $294,877.57 
Ongoing / Future Costs:  N/A 
 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
There are no staffing implications to the recommended motion. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Inform  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Inform - To provide the public with balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the 
problem, alternatives, opportunities and/or solutions. 
  
PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Inform - We will keep you informed.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Administration will present the reviewed 2023 grant listing as recommended by Committee of the Whole to 
Council in July 2023. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• 2023 Community Grant Summary, with grant applications hyperlinked 

211



# Name of Organization Grant Type
 Total Amount 

Requested 
Proposed Project

Previous 
Grant from 

MD
Previous Grant 

Purpose

Year  Previous 
Grant 

Received

Amount of 
Previous 

Grant

Final Completion 
Report Provided 

to MD

Grant funds 
applied for from 
other sources?

Donee, purpose and 
amount

Type of Fundraising & Amount 
Raised

Recognition Proposed Administration Recommendations

1 Grovedale Figure Skating Club Operating Grant  $          14,000.00 Ice rental costs at the Grovedale arena for the 
season- October 2023 to March 2024.

No N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes Secure energy   Ice show- 
$2,000.00.

Grovedale volunteers. Ice 
show- $1,000.00

Pub night- $5,500.00.     
Mitchel's soup. $2,500.00

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating grant request to assist with the 
2023/2024 ice costs allowing the program to 
continue in the community. 

2 Valleyview and District Sun 
Valley Pioneers Association

Capital Grant  $          10,000.00 Replace the furnace in the games room. Yes Capital renos to 
the game room 
and annual 
operating grant.

2022

2023

Capital- 
$12,250.00

Annual 
Operating- 
$11,500.00

Yes Yes Funds in general account 
from various sources - 
repairs to roof top 
furnaces provided by 
Caron Measurements, 
Perron Ventures, and 
Valleyview Legion

50/50 draws, Christmas Party, 
seminar luncheon, Jamboree, 
activity fees

Plaque displayed at the 
centre as well as plaque 
for MD office

Administration recommends supporting the 
capital grant request to a facility utilized by 
Greenview seniors in the Valleyview and 
surrounding areas.

3 Ridgevalley Playschool 
Association

Operating Grant  $             2,000.00 To help with the costs of supplies ensuring our 
teacher has the materials she needs.

No N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes Class improvement-
East Smoky Rec Board-
$2,000.00

Dieleman Fundraising Sales, 
$1500.00

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating grant request to assist with the 
purchase of materials required to run the 
playschool program in the Ridgevalley 
community.

4 Fox Creek Slo-Pitch Capital Grant  $          30,000.00 Assist with remaining shale required to complete 
the ball diamonds project (2 loads @$10,000/load 
and fix up fencing around diamonds.

No N/A N/A N./A N/A No Town of Fox Creek- 
$50,000.00 ($40,000.00 
used for shale, 
$10,000.00 to fix 
backstops)

Donations were received 
to dig out the diamonds.

Requested funding from local 
companies  - $10,000.00

Facebook Slo- pitch page 
and a banner at the 
diamonds thanking the 
MD for the donation

Administration recommends supporting a 
capital grant in the amount of $10,000.00 to 
assist in completing the ball diamond project 
which will benefit the health & wellness of 
the community.

5 Crooked Creek Community 
Recreation Club

Capital Grant  $          58,318.57 Upgrade Bathrooms to Wheelchair Accessible,  
upgrade Lighting to LED, replace Windows in plant 
room to fire rated windows and dry wall 
mechanical room.  Change Pressure Relief Valves 
on Plant as required every 5 years.

Yes Paint exterior and 
interior of the 
Ridgevalley arena 
building

2019

2023

$7,893.38

Annual 
Operating-
$70,000.00

Yes No N/A We sell advertising boards for 
around the ice surface 
$5000.00
Casino every 3 years 
$30.000.00

A proudly supported by 
Greenview sign is located 
permanently on the 
Ridgevalley Arena.

Administration recommends supporting this 
capital grant request to improve the arena 
and make it accessible for the community 
and visitors. 

6 Valleyview Riverside Golf Club Capital Grant  $          53,140.00 Club House and Cart Shed Renovations. Yes Mowing & kitchen 
equipment, used 
power carts.

2022 Capital -
$25,000.00 
over the next 
three years

No No Alberta CFEP Grant,- anticipate 
response in July 2023

Local company sponsorships-
approximately $20,000.00

Yes Administration recommends no action be 
taken on this capital request at this time.  
Administration recognizes this facility 
positively impacts the social well being of 
the Valleyview and area communities, 
however the last approved grant of 
$25,000.00 was for 2022 through to 2025.

7 Cranberry Lake Rodeo 
Association

Operating Grant  $          30,000.00 Annual two day rodeo event, two day 
chuckwagon event, weekly team roping, team 
roping events, barrel racing events, High School 
Rodeo, and the annual Debolt Jamboree is held at 
our facility.

Yes Operational costs 
of the annual two 
day rodeo.

2022 $20,000.00 Yes Yes Community Facility 
Enhancement Program- 
Government of Alberta, 
Pavilion Completion, 
$14,000.00

Sell advertising signs for beside 
the highway ($4600) as well as 
Casino every 3 years

Administration recommends supporting an 
operating grant in the amount of $20,000.00 
for this annual event that impacts the social 
wellbeing of the  DeBolt & surrounding 
communities.

8 Alberta Invasive Species Council Operating Grant  $             5,000.00 To facilitate a review of the AISC's invasive species 
factsheets.

Yes These funds have 
helped us with 
our work to 
protect Alberta 
from the impacts 
of invasive 
species.

2012 to 2022 $5,000.00 per 
year

No No AISC sponsorship funds 
are used to pay staff 
salaries, fund travel to 
events, and cover other 
administrative costs.

The AISC is a non-profit 
organization that receives 
revenue form AGLC 
fundraisers, donations from 
municipalities, fee for service 
work (e.g., biocontrol releases) 
and through various grants

Administration recommends supporting an 
operating grant in the amount of $5,000.00 
with funds to come from the 2023 
Agricultural Services budget. 

2023 Community Services Proposed Grant Request (Spring)
Committee of the Whole Meeting June 20, 2023

212



# Name of Organization Grant Type
 Total Amount 

Requested 
Proposed Project

Previous 
Grant from 

MD
Previous Grant 

Purpose

Year  Previous 
Grant 

Received

Amount of 
Previous 

Grant

Final Completion 
Report Provided 

to MD

Grant funds 
applied for from 
other sources?

Donee, purpose and 
amount

Type of Fundraising & Amount 
Raised

Recognition Proposed Administration Recommendations

2023 Community Services Proposed Grant Request (Spring)
Committee of the Whole Meeting June 20, 2023

9 Grande Cache United Church 
Thrift Store

Capital Grant  $             7,000.00 Update washrooms to a single, all gender  
wheelchair accessible washroom.

No N/A N/A N/A N/A Yes Community Facility 
Enhancement Program 
Grant - Small Funding 
Stream matching grant. 
To replace non 
functioning stairlifts with 
a single unit that meets 
all current  requirements- 
$15,260.00.

The Thrift Store is the primary 
source of fundraising and 
covers most of the operating 
costs for the church building.-
$44,701.14 raised in 2022.

Social media, ribbon 
cutting ceremony, local 
newspaper.

Administration recommends no action be 
taken ont this capital request as this is 
funding a religious entity. 

10 Peace Area Riding for the 
Disabled Society

Operating Grant  $          20,000.00 PARDS is seeking financial assistance for program 
expenses associated with running our Animal 
Assisted Therapeutic Programs.

Yes Program 
Operations

2021  $    20,000.00 Yes Yes City of Grande Prairie - 
$50,000, program 
operations (if approved, 
funds will not be 
available until 2024)
Intact Insurance - 
$10,000, Youth 
Leadership Program 
Sponsorship (has been a 
sponsor of this program 
for the past 2 years)
Grande Prairie Petroleum 
Association - $10,000, 
Unbridled Youth Trauma 
Program

Annual Community Carnival - 
$21,000
Annual Dine & Dance - 
$124,500
Raffles (2) - $19,600.50 
combined
Rotary Clubs Raffle 
partnerships (2) - $12,580 
combined
In-house fundraising initiatives 
(Kickboard sponsorships, Dime-
at-a-Time bottle donation 
program, Need for Feed 
campaign, etc.) - $101,410 
combined

The MD of Greenview will 
be recognized as a 
Program Partner in an 
Appreciation post on our 
social media feeds, logo 
recognition in each of our 
newsletters, logo 
recognition on our facility 
entranceway lightboard, 
logo recognition on our 
outdoor digital sign. Your 
arena kickboard sign will 
also remain proudly 
displayed.

Administration recommends supporting this 
operating request as this program directly 
impacts over 50 Greenview residents each 
year. 

11 Grovedale Community and 
Agricultural Society

Capital Grant  $          30,000.00 Upgrades to the old fencing along the front (east) 
side of our hall and horseshoe pit area. This will 
align with the new pavement for better 
aesthetics.

Yes Capital grant for 
start-up daycare 
costs

2021 $46,000 Yes Yes N/A N/A Social Media, Community 
Newsletter

Administration recommends supporting this 
capital request as this project is improving 
Greenview assets.

12 Smoky River Nordic Ski Club Capital Grant  $          47,973.54 A portion of the funds are intended for the start 
up of the Engaging Youth Program and providing 
equipment, such as, skis, boots, poles and 
snowshoes that will be available for all youth to 
participate. 

The other portion of the capital grant is intended 
for two storage Sea Cans, a snow Dog Groomer 
and equipment essential in continuing to host 
community events such as barbeques, pots, pans, 
griddles and tables etc. 

Yes Operating grant 
for maintenance 
and grooming of 
the trails. 

2020 $10,000 No N/A N/A Casino which raised a total of  
$38,087.57

 Social media platforms 
and website.  "Proudly 
Sponsored By Greenview" 
stickers made for the 
equipment, ski's etc.

Signage will also be 
possible throughout the 
trails on the existing 
signs.

Administration is recommending that 
Council consider Greenview purchase the 
two required Sea Can's to help with storage 
needs and have them placed at the club for 
their use with a written agreement.

13 Smoky River Nordic Ski Club Operating Grant  $             2,059.00 To send the ski clubs volunteers to Edmonton for 
appropriate training needed to run the Engaging 
Youth Program. there is some basic needs, such 
as, travel, meals and accommodations for the 
volunteers involved along with the course costs.

The Engaging Youth Program will be operated by 
the Smoky River Nordic Ski Club's volunteers.

Yes Operating grant 
for maintenance 
and grooming of 
the trails. 

2020 $10,000 No No N/A Casino which raised a total of 
$38,087.57

 Social media platforms 
and website.  "Proudly 
Sponsored By Greenview" 
stickers made for the 
equipment, ski's etc.

Signage will also be 
possible throughout the 
trails on the existing 
signs.

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating request for the Smoky River 
Nordic Ski Club to send staff to appropriate 
training to run the Engaging Youth Program, 
which benefits the communities youth 
health and wellness.

213



# Name of Organization Grant Type
 Total Amount 

Requested 
Proposed Project

Previous 
Grant from 

MD
Previous Grant 

Purpose

Year  Previous 
Grant 

Received

Amount of 
Previous 

Grant

Final Completion 
Report Provided 

to MD

Grant funds 
applied for from 
other sources?

Donee, purpose and 
amount

Type of Fundraising & Amount 
Raised

Recognition Proposed Administration Recommendations

2023 Community Services Proposed Grant Request (Spring)
Committee of the Whole Meeting June 20, 2023

14 Grande Cache Bighorn Golden 
Age Club

Operating Grant  $          20,500.00 Please find attached papers.

Last grant is still open as project is not complete. 

Remainder of funds to be paid to Beairsto and 
Associates when last phase is complete.

Yes 1. support club,
heating, insulation 
and renovation 
maintenance.
2. Appliances
3. Operating
4.Phase 2, 
renovation
project.
5.Clubhouse
renovation

2017
2019
2020
2021
2022

$50,000.00,  
$23,883.18,  
$37,500,  
$27,50.00. 
$27,666.89,

Yes Yes New Horizons Grant for 
roof replacement 2015
New Horizons Grant for 
seniors social media 
workshop and equipment 
2016-2017

Casino-$27,769.80 Social Media, Photo op, 
newspaper,

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating grant request with the condition 
that funds not be released until the previous 
project is complete and Greenview has 
received the outcome report. 

15 Royal Canadian Legion Branch 
#278

Operating Grant  $          30,000.00 To assist us in our continued support to the 
community of Grande Cache.  Like many 
community Legions we are struggling to keep the 
doors open.  

Yes Facility repairs 
and alterations.

2020 50,000.00 No No 50/50 Raffles approx $3000.00 Social Media through the 
legion Facebook page and 
posters on the entrance 
doors

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating request to help with the daily 
operational costs, as this directly benefits 
the community members in the Grande 
Cache area.

16 Royal Canadian Legion Branch 
#278

Capital Grant  $          60,000.00 New dishwashing equipment, food storage and 
repairs to our cooking equipment. 

The community hall is in need of new flooring, 
ceiling and upgrading to LED Lighting to reduce 
operating costs. 

Current tables and chairs are in need of 
replacement.

No Facility repairs 
and alterations.

2020 $50,000 No No 50/50  approx. $3000.00 this is 
just for operating capital 
Casino last year 20,000.00 is 
just for operating capital which 
paid off back debt of utilities 
during Covid.

Facebook Page Posters in 
the legion and 
throughout the 
community.

Administration recommends supporting the 
capital request as the legion contributes 
considerably to the community by hosting 
events and renting the facility for minimal 
cost.

17 Prairie Rose 4H Club Operating Grant  $             3,000.00 The 4H club consists of multiple projects, the grant 
money would be used for hall rental, arena rental, 
instruction costs for each of the projects which are 
Equine, Archery, Beef, Canine, Cats and Outdoor 
Living.  

In the 2022/2023, the club budget was an 
estimated $10,000 to run for the year.  The rental 
cost for the Ag Society Hall and Ag Society Arena 
went up $5.00 per hour.

The grant money received will be used to help 
with starting up our year for the 2023/2024 4H 
year, since the money for the grant won't be 
received until June, this helps with the start of our 
year

Yes The club consists 
of multiple 
projects, the grant 
money would be 
used for hall 
rental, arena 
rental and 
instruction costs 
for each of the 
projects which are 
Equine, Beef, 
Archery, Cats and 
Outdoor Living.

2021
2022

$2,000 Yes Yes UFA Achievement Day 
$300
Applied for the 2023 AB 
Transportation Highway 
Clean Up (estimate $500) 
and MD Roadside 
Cleanup - $1,000

Sold Cookbooks, bake sale, Red 
Willow Theater dessert selling, 
sold chocolate bars and is 
currently doing Mitchell's Soup 
and Bottle Drive.  Estimate 
total $2,954.45.  (2 of the 
fundraisers aren't completed)

Brochures, signs at 
achievement day

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating request as this supports 
leadership and positive youth development 
experiences for Greenview youth. 

18 RCL West Smoky Branch No 244 Capital Grant  $             5,000.00 West Smoky Legion Kitchen Renovation Project
Although the Legion Hut is still actively utilized by 
the Legion and Community, it is in serious need of 
upgrades and a general facelift of the interior.  
The kitchen cupboards warrant replacement along 
with upgrades to the pertinent kitchen electrical 
and plumbing systems.  

No N/A N/A N/A N/A No Letters have been sent 
out requesting donations 
to several companies 
operating in the 
Bezanson area.

A capital grant request 
will be made to the 
County of Grande Prairie 
for match funding once 
50% of the funding has 
been raised.

We hold an annual fundraiser 
with the Ag Society.  Funds are 
utilized to provide swimming, 
skiing lessons and 
transportation for youth of 
Bezanson and surrounding 
area.

Social media including 
Facebook and other 
advertising mediums
thank you card
name on plaque to be 
displayed at Legion Hut

Administration recommends no action be 
taken on the capital request as this facility is 
located in the County of Grande Prairie and 
there is an operational legion approximately 
15 km away in DeBolt.

214



# Name of Organization Grant Type
 Total Amount 

Requested 
Proposed Project

Previous 
Grant from 

MD
Previous Grant 

Purpose

Year  Previous 
Grant 

Received

Amount of 
Previous 

Grant

Final Completion 
Report Provided 

to MD

Grant funds 
applied for from 
other sources?

Donee, purpose and 
amount

Type of Fundraising & Amount 
Raised

Recognition Proposed Administration Recommendations

2023 Community Services Proposed Grant Request (Spring)
Committee of the Whole Meeting June 20, 2023

19 Bandaged Paws Animal Rescue 
Association

Operating Grant  $          10,000.00 In order to keep up with the requests for help, 
they are requesting financial support to help 
provide medical care for the animals who come 
from the MD of Greenview.

Yes Financial support 
to provide 
medical care for 
the animals 
Bandaged Paws 
receives from the 
MD of Greenview.

2020 5,000 Yes No County of Grande Prairie,  
Operational costs in the 
form of medical care 
costs for animals from 
the county, $5000

In the last 5 months, we have 
held the following fundraisers:
Online Christmas Auction = 
$22,000.00
Calendar Sales = $5,000.00
Pub Night = $11,000.00
Bottle Drive = $5,000.00
Online 50/50 = $8,000.00
Online Photo Contest = 
$9,500.00
Valentine Gift Baskets = 
$2,000.00

A plaque on the wall in 
our main lobby 
recognizing the MD of 
Greenview for the 
support and add the MD 
of Greenview logo to our 
website on our 
Sponsorship page under 
Grants and & Funding. 

Recognize the MD of 
Greenview by sharing on 
our social media, 
Facebook and Instagram

Administration recommends supporting the 
operating request as the rescue takes in 
animals from Greenview residents and are 
one of the few within the area. 

20 Canadian Motorcycle Tourism 
Association

Capital Grant  $          25,000.00 Remediation of the soil at Veterans Memorial 
Gardens & Interpretive Centre.

soil has become infested with chamomile and it 
has too high of clay content and is not draining 
properly. New wheaping tile will be installed and 
new soil added.

Yes Audio Visual 
Equipment

2019 9,000 Yes Yes County of GP - Operating 
Grant - $5,000
City of GP - Operation 
Grant 50,000 
Museums Assistance 
Program - we qualify to 
apply in November 2023, 
Collections management 
Software, display creation 
and project staffing.

Yes we have. The MD would be 
thanked publicly in a 
press release, in social 
media posts while the 
work is being done.  
Recognition on the 
website and recognition 
by naming a garden or 
placing logos on our 
pergolas sidewalls, on 
banners and fencing.

Administration recommends no action be 
taken on the capital request because the 
application was received 7 days past the 
deadline.  

215



REQUEST FOR DECISION 

21.01.22 

SUBJECT: Recovery Items for Discussion 
SUBMISSION TO: COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: June 20, 2023 CAO:  MANAGER: SD 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & EC. DEVELOPMENT DIR: MAV PRESENTER: SD 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Culture, Social & Emergency Services LEG: 

RELEVANT LEGISLATION: 
Provincial (cite) – N/A 

Council Bylaw/Policy (cite) – N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
MOTION: The Committee of the Whole accept the Sturgeon Lake and Puskwaskau Wildfire discussion for 
information, as presented. 

BACKGROUND/PROPOSAL: 
On May 5th, 2023, wildfires began in populated areas of the Sturgeon Lake Cree First Nations and the 
surrounding area. Wildfires in this area severely damaged or destroyed approximately 71 structures, 36 of 
which were dwellings. With fires now under control, owners are anxious to start the recovery process, and 
inquiries received commonly by the Planning and Development Department have been catalogued. Some of 
the questions we are getting are: 

Will the MD help pay for the properties to be surveyed to ensure new buildings are built within property 
lines? 

• Greenview does not require a real property report in order for Administration to review and issue a
permit, and this is not a basic requirement of rebuilding and would be of limited value as no structures
exist on most damaged property. Posting the lots would likely have markers buried, removed, or their
location altered, perhaps creating rather than solving issues. This is not currently recommended.

Do we need to have a development permit and building permit prior to starting clean-up, and will the MD 
cover the cost of the permit fees? 

• Administration recommends a demolition permit. However, many of these sites are simply debris and
no permit is required to clean sites where municipal services are not connected. Landowners may go
in to start the clean-up process. It is the recommendation Council consider a motion to waive the cost
of municipal permits, the permit fees will not impact the budget, and the administrative tasks can be
absorbed within workflows without the need for added resources. However, building permits would
be required by the Alberta Safety Codes Authority, and they establish fees for those permitting
requirements.

216



 
 

 

 
Do they need an engineer to inspect their properties to ensure proper grading, and will the MD pay for 
this? 

• Greenview does not have a drainage bylaw. Unless it is clear there is a potential impact on a 
neighbouring property when reviewing a development permit, this is not a standard requirement.  

 
Clean up specific questions: 

a. Can they use the transfer station for the debris? 
o No, this is an AEP-regulated site, so construction debris is prohibited.  

 
b. Can Greenview place extra bins at the transfer station for debris drop off? 

o The bins cannot be placed within the transfer station. However, the MD could provide bins at 
the entrance to Sandy Bay for residents to place debris. We would also place a bin at locations 
in the rural area where significant structural losses occurred to ensure fair access to this effort 
of Council. 

 
c. Are there any plans for tree removal by Greenview?  

o At this time, tree removal is only anticipated on Municipal property, but this will be undertaken 
as a course of common business. Due to liability issues, Administration would not remove trees 
on private property, and there are services available which may be covered by insurance.  

 
d. If the trees are cut down, can the landowners keep the wood as firewood, and where can it be 

stored? 
o When trees are downed and bucked up, they are collected at a future date. Should area 

residents seek to acquire the wood, this lessens the effort required by Greenview when 
collection occurs and is viewed as a mutual benefit. Storage would need to be on private lands.  

 
Is there going to be a grace period for taxes? 

• 2023 taxes are based on the 2022 Assessment. In the event of a fire loss, municipal taxes are 
covered under insurance. 

Will the property taxes be reassessed for the area? 
• 2024 taxes will be based on 2023 assessments. The assessments for the damaged property will be 

conducted later in the year 2023. The property will be reassessed based on the condition at the 
assessment time. 

 
Are Telus & ATCO going to improve their services to the area? 

• This is a franchised utility, and we cannot comment on their level of service. 

 
Will the fire breaks that are on private property be cleaned up? 

• Where Greenview has contracts for fire breaks on private lands, we will restore those lands 
pursuant to our contract. It should be noted that many fire breaks were installed by or at the 

217



 
 

 

express direction of Forestry, not Greenview, on privately held lands, and Greenview will not 
undertake those fire breaks. 

  
BENEFITS OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The benefit of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is that both Council and 
Administration will have a common understanding of Greenview’s role during the recovery phase and 
what issues require a future Council motion to be undertaken.  

 
DISADVANTAGES OF THE RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. The disadvantage of Committee of the Whole accepting the recommended motion is that landowners 
who had insurance may be helping to pay for those that did not.  

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
Alternative #1: Committee of the Whole has the alternative to recommend Administration attend a future 
meeting with additional information. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATION: 
Direct Costs: 
There are no costs to accepting the report as information. However, the cost of recommended actions are: 

• The cost of providing extra bins would be borne by Greenview, as would Regional Landfill tipping 
fees. Tipping fees have not been estimated at the time of writing this report. 

• Loss of revenue from Development permits is anticipated to be less than $10,000. 
• Tree removal has a cost but will be addressed under current operational budgets.  

 
STAFFING IMPLICATION: 
Planning staff will need to engage with landowners, which may need to be after regular business hours, which 
may result in overtime. 
 
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT LEVEL: 
Greenview has adopted the IAP2 Framework for public consultation.  
Council’s decision will be relayed to the affected landowners. 

INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT 
Involve  
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL 
Involve - To work directly with the public throughout the process to ensure that public concerns and 
aspirations are consistently understood and considered. 
  

218



 
 

 

PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC 
Involve - We will work with you to ensure that your concerns and aspirations are directly reflected in the 
alternatives developed and provide feedback on how public input influenced the decision.  

 
FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS: 
Landowners will be informed of these answers to their questions when contacted by Administration during 
the recovery process. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

 

219



Date Chief Administrative Officer Action Log Responsible Party NOTES/STATUS

23.05.23 Regular Council Meeting

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.287 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council schedule a Public Hearing prior to second reading of Bylaw
23-943, to be held on June 27, 2023, at 9:15 a.m.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry,
Councillor Delorme

CARRIED

P & E

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.294 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council approve a third approach request to access NE 23-71-20 W5M based on public safety 
concerns.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme

CARRIED

I & E In Progress

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.295 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council appoint the following employees as Pest and Weed inspectors for the term of their 
employment: Roxanne Gueutal, Piper McLaughlin, Elliot D’Lugos, Dextin Reimer, Shandi Tutt, 
Gwen Lewis, Chloe Stewart, Serena Eldridge, Sara Daily, Jennifer Hammell, Michala Serediak, 
Dennis Haglund, Sue LePage, Kathy Levesque, Cheylin Patenaude, Mackenna Kohlman, James Neal, 
Talin McLeod, Sarah Cairns, and Grant Barrett.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme

CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.296 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council approves the Greenview Agricultural Service Board’s nomination of Tollefson Farms 
for the 2023 Farm Family Award.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme

CARRIED

Comm Serv. In Progress

220



May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.297 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council appoint Donald Gourlay and Rennie Cauchie to the Assessment Review Board for a 
three-year term until the Annual Organizational Meeting in 2026.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Corp Serv Complete

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.298 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approve sponsorship to the Canadian Motorcycle Tourism Association in the amount 
of $5,000.00 for the “Remembering the Italian Campaign & Battle of Ortona” event to be held 
September 8 – 10th, 2023, in Grande Prairie, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Delorme
AGAINST: Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. In Progress

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.299 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $2,500.00 to the Fox Creek Chamber of 
Commerce for the Annual “Big Iron Day” to be held September 23, 2023, in Fox Creek, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. In Progress

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.300 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approve sponsorship in the amount of $2,000.00 to the Grande Prairie Traditional 
Pow Wow c/o Grande Prairie Aboriginal Circle of Services for the Traditional Pow Wow to be held 
June 24 & 25, 2023, in Grande Prairie, Alberta.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Delorme
AGAINST: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. In Progress

May 23, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.301 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON	

That Council direct administration to extend memberships at the GRM due to wildfire closures.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm Serv. In Progress

23.05.09 Regular Council Meeting

221



May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.266 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council support the submission of the Forest Resource Improvement Plan of Alberta (FRIAA) 
FireSmart Program application, for the purpose of developing a comprehensive public awareness 
campaign based on the 2021 Sturgeon Heights Wildfire Hazard & Risk Assessment.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.267 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council choose the five Food Banks that serve Greenview residents (Fox Creek, Valleyview, 
DeBolt, Grande Prairie, and Grande Cache) as the donation recipient(s) for the 2023 Clay Shoot 
Stakeholder Event, with the total funds raised split equally among them.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.268 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council directs Administration to set the subsidized amount of registration fees for the 
Annual Clay Shoot event to 50% of the registration cost annually per participant.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

P & E

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.270 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council awards the Greenview Cemeteries Survey to Helix Engineering Ltd., in the amount of 
$48,972.41 plus GST, with funds to come from the Community Services, Professional Services for 
Cemeteries operational budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm.Serv In Progress

222



May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.271 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to award a contract for gravel crushing of 65,000 cubic metres 
at the Pinto South Gravel Pit (SML980119) to D. Ray Construction Ltd. in the amount of 
$837,200.00 plus GST, with funding to come from the 2023 Operations Road Maintenance Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E
In Progress

Contracts are signed

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.272 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council award the purchase of one new 2024 Freightliner 114SD Tandem Truck Chassis with 
Hook Lift Attachment to Western Star and Freightliner of Grande Prairie as quoted for 
$299,460.00, with
funds to come from Environmental Services 2023 Capital Budget. Price may be subject to change if 
the pricing is adjusted for the 2024 production year which is not set yet.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, 
Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E
In Progress
Letter sent

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.273 Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON
That Council approves the purchase of one (1) Spartan ER Wet-Rescue Fire Truck from Safetek 
Profire for a cost of $1,199,508.28, plus GST with funds to come from the Protective Services, PS 
23001.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

Comm.Serv In Progress

May 9, 2023

MOTION: 23.05.277 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council approve the purchase of ten (10) ± acres of Land for the Ridgevalley Lagoon for 
$30,000.00 per acre, with funds to come from the 2023 Capital Budget, WW 21001. NW-14-71-26 
W5M
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Ratzlaff
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E In Progress

23.04.25 Regular Council Meeting

223



April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.231 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council approve the road construction request of approximately 830m to access NW 26-71-
21 W5 located on Range Road 212 north of Township Road 714 with funding to come from Capital 
Block funding.
FOR: Councillor Rosson, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
AGAINST: Councillor Delorme, Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Ratzlaff
                                                                                                                      CARRIED

I&E In Progress

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.234 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council award the Hamlet of Grande Cache Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades, 
Contract 6 – General Construction Contract to Alpha Construction Inc., in the amount of 
$43,577,000 plus GST, with funds to come from WW19002.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                   CARRIED

I&E

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.235 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to debenture fund project WW19002 Grande Cache Sewage 
Treatment Plant for an estimated value of $40,104,228.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                      CARRIED

Corp Serv In Progress

224



April 25, 2023

That Council award the New Grande Cache Sand and Salt Storage Structure to TDN Jenkins in the 
amount of $844,615.58 with funds to come from Capital Budget FM22008.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I&E

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.242 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to tender electrical transfer switch for the Greenview Regional 
Multiplex and the Grovedale Community Centre with funds to come from the Capital Project 
Budget FM22009.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                        CARRIED

I&E

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.243 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council award the Grovedale Lagoon Decommissioning (WW17002) to Wild West Dirt Works 
Ltd., in the amount of $1,371,130.00 plus GST, with funds to come from the Approved 2023 Capital 
Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                          CARRIED

I&E In Progress

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.244 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council award the Township Road 704 Engineering to WSP, in the amount of $44,809.00 plus 
GST, with funds to come from the 2023 approved Capital Budget (PV23004).
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                          CARRIED

I&E In Progress

225



April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.245 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct Administration to award D. Ray Construction Ltd. a gravel crushing contract at 
the River Top Sand & Gravel Pit in the amount of $480,920.00 plus GST with funding to come from 
the 2023 Operations’ Road Maintenance Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                        CARRIED

I&E
In Progress

Contracts are signed

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.246 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council award the Turn-Key Haul and Store Jug Fill Station to Flowpoint Environmental 
Systems Inc, in the amount of $148,475.97 plus GST, with funds to come from the 2023 Capital 
Budget (WD23006).
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                            CARRIED

I&E

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.247 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council awards a one-year contract for the Weed Control on the Forestry Trunk Road tender 
to 2395426 AB Ltd. O/A Hodge Vegetation Control Ltd./C&D Vegetation Control Ltd., in the 
amount of $48,825.00 plus GST, with funds to come from Agricultural Services Contracted 
Maintenance Service Budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, 
Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                           CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

April 25, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.255 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to investigate the potential of implementing a Small Business 
sub-class tax for the purpose of supporting small businesses within Greenview for the 2024 tax 
year.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
ABSENT: Councillor Dale Smith
                                                                                                            CARRIED

Corp Serv In progress

226



April 11, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.209 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council proclaim the week of May 8 – 12, 2023, as Economic Development Week in the 
Municipal District of Greenview No. 16. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                              CARRIED

P & E In Progress

April 11, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.219 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to cancel the Westview Gravel Pit – Gravel Crushing 
(SML030053) tender due to submitted bids being over budget.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                              CARRIED

MOTION: 23.04.220 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to re-tender 2023 Crushing Program at the Westview Gravel Pit 
(SML030053) with a new scope.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                              CARRIED

I & E

Complete

In Progress
Tender has closed, bringing results to 

June Council Meeting

April 11, 2023

MOTION: 23.04.221 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council direct Administration to do an in-house high-level feasibility study on costs for adding 
water and possibly sewer to the Grovedale Winters Industrial Park for the last Council meeting of 
June 2023.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Burton
                                                                                                              CARRIED

I & E In Progress

23.04.11 Regular Council Meeting

23.03.14 Regular Council Meeting

227



March 14, 2023

MOTION: 23.03.138 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council accept the report on Large Animal Veterinary Practice Supports for information, as 
presented.

FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
 
                                                                                                                         CARRIED

MOTION: 23.03.139 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to draft a program for Council consideration based on the 
Livestock Veterinary Innovation Initiative with options detailing a potential Greenview only 
initiative as well as a Peace Region based initiative.

FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
 
                                                                                                                         CARRIED

Ag. Serv In progress

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.99 Moved by: DEPUTY REEVE BILL SMITH
That Council authorize Administration to repair the BBQ at a cost of $9,000.00, and have it 
inspected by a gas fitter with funds to come from the Ag Rental Equipment Program.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

MOTION: 23.02.100 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council authorize Administration to retain the BBQ in the rental fleet and establish a damage 
deposit of $200.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

23.02.28 Regular Council Meeting

228



February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.103 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF
That Council direct Administration to investigate the necessity and feasibility of having backup 
power supply to all of the MD Emergency Reception Centres.  
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.118 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to engage Alberta Transportation to find a solution for the 
failing bridge on Highway 747 near Sweathouse and the deteriorating portions of Highway 666 
near Landry Heights.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

I&P/CAO
Bridge repair is scheduled for 2023, 

Hwy 666 on-going discussions

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.119 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY	

That Council direct Administration to provide an enhanced level of service on Range Road 200 
bridge hill near Sweathouse until June 1, 2023, due to extenuating circumstances caused by the 
Highway 747 bridge restricted use.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

I&E
In Progress, Gravel has been added 

and grading sequence has been 
increased

February 28, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.120 Moved by: REEVE TYLER OLSEN	

That Council direct Administration to work on a Conference and Education attendance policy for 
Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Leg. Services
In Progress

Going to PRC June 14

23.02.21 COTW Meeting
23.02.14 Regular Council Meeting

229



February 14, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.62 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to support Heart River Housing with funding up to $10,000,000 
for construction on their Falher project through development of a loan guarantee bylaw.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                CARRIED

Corp. Serv/Leg
In Progress

review of draft

February 14, 2023

MOTION: 23.02.79 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to tender roadside ditch mowing of the Forestry Trunk Road, 
Grande Cache Airport Road, Grande Cache Airport and Victor Lake Road for the 2023 season.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Schlief, 
Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff
AGAINST: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton
                                                                                                                CARRIED

I&E
Complete, following past practice and 

information added to monthly 
manager report.

January 24, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.46 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to explore opportunities of grant funding and partnerships for 
the establishment of communication towers on highway 40 from Grande Cache Area to Grande 
Prairie utilizing fibre connection.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                       CARRIED

Corp. Serv. In Progress

January 24, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.51 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to prepare a report regarding the overall response effectiveness 
to a pipeline emergency that occurred on January 18, 2023.
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton
ABSENT: Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                       CARRIED

Comm. Serv In Progress

January 17, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.08 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Committee of the Whole recommend that Council direct Administration to produce a 
Greenview Community Hall and Arena Assessment report prioritizing identified items and 
expectations on how they are to be completed, with timelines and through collaboration with each 
board.
CARRIED

Com. Serv/CAO In Progess

23.01.24 Regular Council Meeting

230



January 10, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.09 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to sign the updated Heart River Housing Letter of 
Understanding regarding financing dated December 15, 2022, as provided by Heart River Housing.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

MOTION: 23.01.10 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council direct Administration to investigate assisting Heart River Housing with the debt 
financing of the capital projects presented and report back with the possible options.  
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

Comm. Serv
Letter signed and sent - Second 

Motion - In Progress

January 10, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.16 Moved by: COUNCILLOR RYAN RATZLAFF	

That Council direct Administration to suspend the 2023 road re-gravelling program where deemed 
appropriate, excluding the Forestry Trunk Road.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Scott, Councillor Burton
ABSENT: Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

I & E
In Progress                                      

compiling a new 2023 map

January 10, 2023

MOTION: 23.01.17 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH	

That Council give authority to Administration to tender with consideration given to companies that 
minimizes travel, the Athabasca stockpiling projects from the Athabasca pit to Little Smoky and 
Valleyview stockpile sites
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff 
AGAINST: Councillor Berry, Councillor Burton
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

I & E Complete

23.01.10 Regular Council Meeting

22.11.22 RCM

231



November 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.11.737 Moved by: COUNCILLOR JENNIFER SCOTT
That Council support moving forward in principle with joint use of the Greenview Regional 
Multiplex by the New K-12 school pending a mutually beneficial joint use agreement with the 
Northern Gateways Public School Division.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, 
Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
AGAINST: Councillor Delorme
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Planning
In Progress, Motion relayed to 

Northern Gateway Public School 
Division

November 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.11.738 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to host a public engagement as soon as possible for the 
purpose of gathering information regarding the potential joint use agreement between the 
Municipal District of Greenview and Northern Gateway School Division regarding the Greenview 
Regional Multiplex.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Schlief, 
Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Deputy 
Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Planning
In Progress - Public Enagement to 

occurr once funding details are 
provided. 

November 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.11.740 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council take no action on the Valleyview Seed Cleaning Plant Cooperative offer to sell the 
property to Greenview.
                                                                                                                   DEFERRED

MOTION: 22.11.741 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council defer motion “Valleyview Seed Cleaning Plant Cooperative Property Offer” until the 
last Regular Council meeting in January. 
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Schlief, 
Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry, Deputy 
Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Comm Serv. Complete

22.10.25 RCM

232



October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.693 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council approves 110 Street, between Hoppe Ave and 98 Avenue in Grande Cache Alberta be 
renamed to “Beland Blvd”.
                                                                                                     DEFERRED

MOTION: 22.10.694 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council defer motion 7.5 Grande Cache Street Renaming until a new policy on street naming 
can be brought back to Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor, Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

Leg. Serv 
In Progress

PRC deffered to another meeting

October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.698 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to proceed with construction of a Small Reservoir Water Point 
System that requires a water reservoir that is filled with potable water (delivered by truck) with a 
circulating pump, in the subdivision of Nose Creek within Greenview.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Burton, Councillor Berry
AGAINST: Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Rosson
                                                                                                             CARRIED

I & E
In Progress, RFP posted March 3 / 

closes April 3, 2023. 

October 25, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.704 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council approves a formal acknowledgement of the relationship between the MD of 
Greenview No. 16 and the Western Cree Tribal Council.
FOR: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                             CARRIED

CAO/Comms In Progress

22.10.11 RCM

233



October 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.09.578 Moved by: COUNCILLOR SALLY ROSSON
That Council direct Administration to review licensing Bylaw 00-324 and include a provision for 
hawkers and peddlers for the purpose of Council discussion and further direction.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                           CARRIED

Ec Dev Planning In Progress - April 18, 2023 COTW

October 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.10.574 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
That Council direct Administration to provide a report on the options to purchase Crown land off 
Memorial Drive in Grande Cache, Ab, Role Number 7200.

For: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow
Against: Reeve Olsen
                                                                                                                           CARRIED

Ec Dev Planning
In Progress - pending completion of 

report on commerical land assessment 
within Grande Cache

september 13,2022

MOTION: 22.09.519 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to provide a report regarding the Grande Cache Community Bus 
for the purpose of understanding when it will be replaced, and the associated funds dedicated to 
its replacement.

For: Councillor Burton, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow.
Absent: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                                                          CARRIED

Comm. Serv in progress

22 09.20 C.O.T.W.

234



July 12, 2022

MOTION: 22.07.417 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct Administration to enter into an agreement with the Mountain Metis Nation 
Association regarding the sale of Block 9722089, Lot 34, Plan 14, within the Hamlet of Grande 
Cache, for the future development of a Mountain Metis Cultural Centre.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                        CARRIED

MOTION: 22.07.418 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to tender the proposed reconstruction of roadway including 
underground utilities from 94 Avenue and 97 street intersection, east to Memorial Drive in the 
Hamlet of Grande Cache.

For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor 
Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                        CARRIED

Ec. Dev & Plan
In Progress - transfer being reviewed 

by Legal

June 21, 2022

MOTION: 22.06.71 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Committee of the Whole recommend to Council to direct Administration to explore a weed 
control collaboration with key stakeholders within the Willmore Wilderness and Improvement 
District No. 25.

For: Reeve Olsen, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, 
Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Didow
                                                                                                                      CARRIED
Absent: Councillor Burton

Comm. Serv

In progress Administration has a 
meeting booked with the Alberta 

Forestry, Parks and Tourism 
representatives for an 

intergovernmental working group 
discussion regarding control f weed 
infestations in the Willmore Area of 

December 14th.

22 06.28 RCM

235



April 26,2022

MOTION: 22.04.223 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE BERRY
That Council direct Administration to call a meeting with the Town of Valleyview and Greenview 
Intermunicipal Collaboration Framework Committee.

For: Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Rosson, Councillor 
Berry, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor Tom Burton, Councillor Scott, Councillor Schlief, Councillor 
Didow.

                                                                                                                       CARRIED

CAO In Progress

March 22, 2022

MOTION: 22.03.157 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DUANE DIDOW
That Council direct administration to investigate commercial land opportunities in Grande Cache 
for the purpose of Economic Development.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Didow, Councillor Dale Smith, Councillor 
Delorme, Councillor Schlief, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Scott, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor 
Burton, Councillor Berry
                                                                                                                     CARRIED

Planning & Ec. Dev.
In Progress - Planning to bring to RCM 

in the beginning of May.

January 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.01.23  Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME
That Council direct Administration to re-establish the water well and equipment that existed previously 
at PT-10-57-5 W6M Muskeg Seepee Cooperative, with funds to come from the 2022 Capital budget.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, 
Councillor Smith, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Scott, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Schlief
                                                                                                                    CARRIED

I&E

In Progress, 3 wells drilled to date,all 
dry, waiting for Co-op to assist with 

further direction, if not received soon,  
will drill final well at previous capped 

location

January 11, 2022

MOTION: 22.01.26 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH
MOTION: That Council approve the land purchase of 1,943.28 acres, all located within Township 67, 
Range 5, W6M and includes lands within N ½ Section 10, NW ¼ Section 11, S ½ Section 14, all Section 
15, E ½ Section 16, E ½ Section 21, all Section 22, W ½ Section 23, W ½ Section 27, SW ¼ Section 34, for 
the Greenview Industrial Gateway project as per the appraised assessment value per acre established 
by the Government of Alberta, with an upset limit of $3,000,000.00, with funds to come from the 
Economic Development Reserve.
For: Reeve Olsen, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith, Councillor Burton, Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, 
Councillor Smith, Councillor Ratzlaff, Councillor Scott, Councillor Rosson, Councillor Berry, Councillor 
Schlief
                                                                                                                    CARRIED

CAO Serv. In Progress 

21 08 24 RCM 

22 01 11 RCM

22 03 22 RCM

236



August 24, 2021

MOTION: 21.08.427 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE GERVAIS
That Administration bring back a report on the legal ownership regarding properties in which municipal 
assets exist where the municipality does not own the land.
                    
FOR: Councillor Didow, Councillor Delorme, Councillor Urness, Councillor Olsen, Councillor Acton, 
Reeve Dale Smith, Councillor Chapman, Councillor Gervais, Councillor Burton, Deputy Reeve Bill Smith
                                                                                     
                                                                                                               CARRIED

Corp. Serv. 
In progress - part of the AM project and 

Insurance/Contract Review

June 8, 2021

MOTION: 21.06.298 Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE GERVAIS	

That Council direct Administration to discontinue the use of the Greenview Regional Multiplex Logo for 
external and internal advertising and promotion, and have it replaced with the MD of Greenview 
Corporate Logo.
                                                                                                                 CARRIED

CAO Serv. In Progress - logo only exists on the 
building at this point.

April 13, 2021

MOTION: 21.04.196 Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS	

That Council direct Administration to research the concept of polling the rural and small urban 
municipalities in British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba to form an association as 
a federal voice similar to FCM.

For: UNAMINOUS 
Opposed: 

                                                                                                                    CARRIED

CAO Services
In Progress - waiting for Council to 

attend FCM to make informed decision.

March 23, 2021

MOTION: 21.03.148 Moved by: COUNCILLOR WINSTON DELORME	

That Council direct Administration to contact the City of Grande Prairie and the County of Grande 
Prairie to come up with a funding agreement in regards to Nitehawk Year Round Adventure Park.  
                                                                                                                  CARRIED

Community Services

Dec 2022 - Letter has been sent to 
County and City of GP -  In Progess -  

Nitehawk AGM in July, Administration 
will provide a report after this 

meeting. 

21 07 28 Special CM 

21 04 13 RC Meeting

21 03 24 RC Meeting

237


	23.04.18 COTW minutes
	4.1a.Valleyview Ag. Society RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.1b.New Build - Slide Deck
	4.2a. Stolen Harvest Meadery RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.3 a Sandy Bay Owners Association RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.4 a. GC Community Events Foundation Mid Year Report Presentation RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.4 b. Mid-Year Report & Financials
	4.5 a. GC Community Events Foundation Presentation RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	4.5 b. Request Letters Death Fest
	4.5 c. Deathfest full schedule and details
	4.5 Delegation-for-Greenview GCCEF Filled May 23rd
	5.1a. Fireman's Pit Overview - RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.1b. Fireman's Pit Presentation
	Fireman’s Pit Overview
	History
	History
	History
	History
	Provincial Disposition (Current)
	Proposed Sublease
	Insurance Requirements
	Infrastructure - Ownership
	Infrastructure & Assets - List
	Slide Number 11
	Infrastructure - Concerns
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Site Operations
	Concerns: Public Accessibility
	Concerns: Processing of Firewood	
	Greenview’s Current Investment
	Proposed Next Steps	
	Questions?

	5.1c. Fireman's Pit Map
	5.2a. Ridgevalley Lighting
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.2b. 1085801 - Routing Plan (Cost Request A)
	Sheets and Views
	Construction (Portrait-Side)


	5.2c. 1085801 - Routing Plan (Cost Request B)
	Sheets and Views
	Construction Drawing R0 (2)


	5.2d. 1085801 - Proposal Letter
	5.3 a.RFD Weed Inspection Process
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.3 b.Weed Inspection Process
	Weed Inspection Process
	Before we begin….
	The Previous Method
	2021 Changes
	2021 Changes
	Managing Invasive Species
	Managing Invasive Species
	Species Distribution
	Communications Matrix
	Severity of Infestation
	Severity of Infestation
	Severity of Infestation
	Severity of Infestation
	Stage, Proximity, and History
	Species
	Species Distribution
	Next Steps
	After the growing season…

	5.4 a 11.15.22 COTW RFD - EOI Discussion
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.4 b 2022 Contractor Expenses Summary
	Sheet1

	5.4 c  Contractor Hiring - Practices of Various Municipalities
	5.4 d PW 10_Gravel Truck Hiring_Inactive
	M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

	5.4 e PW 07_Equipment Hiring_Inactive
	M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16

	5.4 f 2014 - 2015_Expression of Interest_Truck & Equipment Listing_Redacted
	5.5 a. 2023 Spring Grant Requests RFD
	INCREASING LEVEL OF PUBLIC IMPACT
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION GOAL
	PROMISE TO THE PUBLIC

	5.5 b. 2023 Grant Application Summary (April 15, 2023 deadline)
	2023 Grant Application (October

	ACTION LIST
	CAO Log


	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Yes
	NonProfit OrganizationBusiness Name_2: Grande Cache Community Events Foundation
	Name: Jake O'Reilly
	Address: Box 1582, Grande Cache, Alberta, Canada
	Email: jake@gccef.ca
	Phone: 7807830311
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Yes
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Text17: Canada Day sponsorship requestWe would like to request the donation of the rental of the recreation center for our event.Licensed events in public areasFor Death Fest we would like to return to the same festival plan and set-up that the former Town of Grande Cache used.In order to do this and obtain a license from AGLC special events would require the ability to rent public parks and spaces or otherwise have permission to use the space for this purpose.
	Check Box18: Yes
	Check Box19: Yes
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Text26: 


